BMO Mutual Funds 2015

Semi-Annual Financial Statements

March 31, 2015

BMO Monthly Income Fund

NOTICE OF NO AUDITOR REVIEW OF THE SEMI-ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BMO Investments Inc., the Manager of the Fund, appoints independent auditors to audit the Fund’s Annual Financial Statements.
Under Canadian securities laws (National Instrument 81-106), if an auditor has not reviewed the Semi-Annual Financial
Statements, this must be disclosed in an accompanying notice.

The Fund’s independent auditors have not performed a review of these Semi-Annual Financial Statements in accordance with

standards established by the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants.
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BMO Monthly Income Fund

(unaudited)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(All amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per unit data)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(All amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per unit data)

March 31 September 30 October 1 March 31 March 31
As at 2015 2014 2013 For the periods ended 2015 2014
ASSETS INCOME
Interest income 12,619 4,205
EgsRhRENT ASSES 21,833 26,420 26,10  Dividend income 29,934 27,739
Investments ! ! ! Distribution from myestment t(usts 8,142 9,734
Non-derivative financial Otger.ch?_nges in fair value of investments and
erivatives
Dearis\f:ttisve rssets 3'864'523 3'603'?232 3,505,395 Net realized gain N 177,627 79,046
Receivable for investments sold 71,038 12,543 14,076 Chan.ge_ n u.nreahzed a.ppreaatlon 114,549 183,420
Subscriptions receivable 4,220 1,690 3,306 Net gain |n_fa|r value of investments and
Interest receivable 13,489 15,260 18,438 derivatives 342,871 304,144
Dividends receivable 4,617 3,883 5,124 Securities lending revenue 332 372
Distribution receivable from Foreign exchange (loss) gain (394) 167
investment trusts 2,171 2,092 1,971 Total other income (loss) (62) 539
Total assets 3,981,982 3,665,794 3,574,420 Total income 342,809 304,683
LIABILITIES EXPENSES
CURRENT LIABILITIES Management fees (note 6) 24,643 22,970
Payable for investments Fixed administration fees (note 6) 2,301 2,185
purchased 77,387 8,489 8,407 Independent review committee fees 8 6
Redemptions payable 4,052 3,424 10,825 Withholding taxes 1,507 1
Derivative liabilities - 24 - Interest charges 0 -
Accrued expenses 4,817 4,292 4,225 Fund Facts fees . _ 0 0
Total liabilities 86,256 16,229 23,457 Commissions and other portfolio transaction
costs (note 6) 690 656
Net assets attributable to Operating expenses absorbed by the Manager (21) (57)
holders of redeemable units 3,895,726 3,649,565 3,550,963 Total expenses 29,128 26,681
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units . .
Series A Units 3,093 698 2843924 2749 174 Increase in net asse!s attributable to holders
Series T6 Units ! 57:140 ! 48:834 ! 29:880 of redeemable units 313,681 278,002
Series F Units 6,732 3,716 3,41 Increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units
Premium Series Units 1 - - Series A Units 245,236 213,462
Series D Units 6,388 3,877 — Series T6 Units 4,235 2,611
Series | Units 290,012 263,725 234,853 Series F Units 409 255
Series R Units 441,755 485,489 533,585 Premium Series Units 0 —
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units per unit Ser!es D Ur)lts 421 -~
Series A Units § 773 $ 759 $ 7.05 Series | Units 25,279 20,885
Series T6 Units $ 10.47 § 1032 6 972 Series R Units 38,101 40,789
Series F Units $ 1115 $ 10.77 $ 10.15 Increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units
Premium Series Units $ 10.06 $ ) — per unit (note 3)
Series D Units $ 10.86 § 10.34 § — Series A Units 0.63 0.56
Series | Units $ 9.66 $ 941§ 8.81 Series T6 Units 0.85 0.78
Series R Units $ 6.85 $ 6.99 $ 6.87 Series F Units 0.92 0.84
Premium Series Units 0.06 —
Series D Units 0.89 —
Series | Units 0.87 0.77
Series R Units 0.57 0.54

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



BMO Monthly Income Fund

(unaudited)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE UNITS

(All amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars)

March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31

For the periods ended 2015 2014 For the periods ended 2015 2014
Series A Units Series T6 Units
Net assets attributable to holders of Net assets attributable to holders of

redeemable units at beginning of period 2,843,924 2,749,174 redeemable units at beginning of period 48,834 29,880
Increase in net assets attributable to holders Increase in net assets attributable to holders

of redeemable units 245,236 213,462 of redeemable units 4,235 2,611
Distributions to holders of redeemable units from: Distributions to holders of redeemable units from:
Net investment income (32,300) (38,087) Net investment income (546) (391)
Net realized gains on investments and Net realized gains on investments and

derivatives (130,762) (28,240) derivatives (1,959) (331)
Return of capital (23,120) (6,874) Return of capital (958) (346)
Total distributions to holders of redeemable Total distributions to holders of redeemable

units (186,182) (73,201) units (3,463) (1,068)
Redeemable unit transactions Redeemable unit transactions
Proceeds from redeemable units issued 280,442 179,142 Proceeds from redeemable units issued 12,570 10,508
Reinvestments of distributions to holders of Reinvestments of distributions to holders of

redeemable units 155,756 60,638 redeemable units 559 196
Redemption of redeemable units (245,478) (365,833) Redemption of redeemable units (5,595) (4,429)
Net increase (decrease) from redeemable Net increase from redeemable unit

unit transactions 190,720 (126,053) transactions 7,534 6,275
Net increase in net assets attributable to Net increase in net assets attributable to

holders of redeemable units 249,774 14,208 holders of redeemable units 8,306 7,818
Net assets attributable to holders of Net assets attributable to holders of

redeemable units at end of period 3,093,698 2,763,382 redeemable units at end of period 57,140 37,698

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



BMO Monthly Income Fund

(unaudited)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE UNITS (cont’d)

(All amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars)

March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31

For the periods ended 2015 2014 For the periods ended 2015 2014
Series F Units Series D Units
Net assets attributable to holders of Net assets attributable to holders of

redeemable units at beginning of period 3,716 3,471 redeemable units at beginning of period 3,877 —
Increase in net assets attributable to holders Increase in net assets attributable to holders

of redeemable units 409 255 of redeemable units a1 —
Distributions to holders of redeemable units from: Distributions to holders of redeemable units from:
Net investment income (63) (84) Net investment income (61) —
Net realized gains on investments and Net realized gains on investments and

derivatives (162) (70) derivatives (94) —
Return of capital (27) (0) Return of capital (24) —
Total distributions to holders of redeemable Total distributions to holders of redeemable

units (252) (154) units (179) -
Redeemable unit transactions Redeemable unit transactions
Proceeds from redeemable units issued 2,926 1,179 Proceeds from redeemable units issued 3,116 -
Reinvestments of distributions to holders of Reinvestments of distributions to holders of

redeemable units 145 107 redeemable units 146 —
Redemption of redeemable units (212) (1,530) Redemption of redeemable units (993) —
Net increase (decrease) from redeemable Net increase from redeemable unit

unit transactions 2,859 (244) transactions 2,269 —
Net increase (decrease) in net assets Net increase in net assets attributable to

attributable to holders of redeemable holders of redeemable units 2,511 —

units 3,016 (143)

Net assets attributable to holders of

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units at end of period 6,388 -

redeemable units at end of period 6,732 3,328
Premium Series Units
Net assets attributable to holders of

redeemable units at beginning of period — —
Increase in net assets attributable to holders

of redeemable units 0 -
Redeemable unit transactions
Proceeds from redeemable units issued 1 —
Net increase from redeemable unit

transactions 1 —
Net increase in net assets attributable to

holders of redeemable units 1 -
Net assets attributable to holders of

redeemable units at end of period 1 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



BMO Monthly Income Fund

(unaudited)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE UNITS (cont’d)

(All amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars)

March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31

For the periods ended 2015 2014 For the periods ended 2015 2014
Series | Units Series R Units
Net assets attributable to holders of Net assets attributable to holders of

redeemable units at beginning of period 263,725 234,853 redeemable units at beginning of period 485,489 533,585
Increase in net assets attributable to holders Increase in net assets attributable to holders

of redeemable units 25,279 20,885 of redeemable units 38,101 40,789
Distributions to holders of redeemable units from: Distributions to holders of redeemable units from:
Net investment income (4,718) (7,403) Net investment income (5,216) (6,575)
Net realized gains on investments and Net realized gains on investments and

derivatives (12,038) (4,918) derivatives (23,404) (5,294)
Return of capital (491) (23) Return of capital (18,723) (15,149)
Total distributions to holders of redeemable Total distributions to holders of redeemable

units (17,247) (12,344) units (47,343) (27,018)
Redeemable unit transactions Redeemable unit transactions
Proceeds from redeemable units issued 5,788 5,978 Proceeds from redeemable units issued 390 21,101
Reinvestments of distributions to holders of Reinvestments of distributions to holders of

redeemable units 17,247 12,344 redeemable units 212 69
Redemption of redeemable units (4,780) (9,415) Redemption of redeemable units (35,094) (49,928)
Net increase from redeemable unit Net decrease from redeemable unit

transactions 18,255 8,907 transactions (34,492) (28,758)
Net increase in net assets attributable to Net decrease in net assets attributable to

holders of redeemable units 26,287 17,448 holders of redeemable units (43,734) (14,987)
Net assets attributable to holders of Net assets attributable to holders of

redeemable units at end of period 290,012 252,301 redeemable units at end of period 441,755 518,598

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



BMO Monthly Income Fund

(unaudited)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE UNITS (cont’d)
(All amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars)

March 31 March 31
For the periods ended 2015 2014

Total Fund
Net assets attributable to holders of

redeemable units at beginning of period 3,649,565 3,550,963
Increase in net assets attributable to holders

of redeemable units 313,681 278,002

Distributions to holders of redeemable units from:

Net investment income (42,904) (52,540)
Net realized gains on investments and

derivatives (168,419) (38,853)
Return of capital (43,343) (22,392)
Total distributions paid to holders of

redeemable units (254,666) (113,785)

Redeemable unit transactions

Proceeds from redeemable units issued 305,233 217,908
Reinvestments of distributions to holders of

redeemable units 174,065 73,354
Redemption of redeemable units (292,152) (431,135)
Net increase (decrease) from redeemable

unit transactions 187,146 (139,873)

Net increase in net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable units 246,161 24,344

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable units at end of period 3,895,726 3,575,307

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



BMO Monthly Income Fund

(unaudited)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(All amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars)

March 31 March 31
For the periods ended 2015 2014

Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets attributable to holders

of redeemable units 313,681 278,002
Adjustments for:
Foreign exchange loss on cash 1 —
Net realized gain on sale of investments
and derivatives (177,627) (79,046)
Change in unrealized appreciation of
investments and derivatives (114,549) (183,420)
Decrease (increase) in interest receivable 1,770 (234)
(Increase) decrease in dividends
receivable (734) 289
Increase in distribution receivable from
investment trusts (79) (716)
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest on
money market investments (29) 17
Increase in accrued expenses 525 109
Amortization of premium and discounts 16,049 29,875
Return of capital distributions received 951 2,633
Dividend reinvestments (13) (619)
Purchases of investments (2,023,650)  (1,127,660)
Proceeds from sale and maturity of
investments 2,048,477 1,351,034
Cash inflows on derivatives 64 63
Net cash from operating activities 64,837 270,327

Cash flows used in financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable

units, net of reinvested distributions (80,601) (40,431)
Proceeds from issuances of redeemable

units 302,703 218,434
Amounts paid on redemption of redeemable

units (291,525) (438,403)
Net cash used in financing activities (69,423) (260,400)
Foreign exchange loss on cash (1) —
Net (decrease) increase in cash (4,586) 9,927
(ash at beginning of period 26,420 26,110
Cash at end of period 21,833 36,037

Supplementary Information

Interest received, net of withholding taxes” 30,409 33,863
Dividends received, net of withholding
taxes” 27,700 27,114

“These items are from operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



BMO Monthly Income Fund

(unaudited)

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

March 31, 2015 (All amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise noted)

Par Fair Par Fair
Value Cost Value Value Cost Value
(in thousands) ¥) %) (in thousands) %) %)
MONEY MARKET INVESTMENTS Province of Quebec, Unsecured, Notes, 4.500%
DECT, 2020 ceeeereee e e, 40,242.... 45,711...... 47,059
Federal — 0.2% )
. Province of Quebec, Unsecured 3.750% Sep 1,
Government of Canada, Treasury Bills, 0.529%
MaY 7, 2015 oo 78007790, 779 2028 oo e, 8,206......9,389....... 9,402
! ! ! ! Province of Quebec, Unsecured, 3.500% Dec 1,
2045 L e 43,174.... 41,678...... 48,608
Provincial — 1.00 412,746.... 446,535
Province of Manitoba, Treasury Bills, 0.701% Jun
19' 2015 i e 0 """" 10,000...... 9,985....... 9,986 Muni(ipal Bonds — 0.1%
Province of Newfoundland, Treasury Bills, 1.026% Gity of Montreal, Unsecured, Notes, 4.100% Dec 1,
APF16, 2015 v e s 10,000.......9,975......... 9,996 2034 oo et 4359......4337....... 5,018
Province of Ontario, Treasury Bills, 0.702% Jun 3,
2015 1o e 10,000......9,985....... 9,988
Province of Ontario, Treasury Bills, 0.717% Jun 3, Corporate Bonds & Debentures — 16.0%
20715 oo 10,000, 9,983....... 9,987 407 International Inc., Series 10-D1, Medium Term
................................................... 39,928.......39,957 Notes, Secured, Subordinated, 3.870% Nov 24,
Total Money Market Investments — 1.2%............c..ccevune 47,718..... 47,753 2017 o 4,000...... 4272........ 4,261
407 International Inc., Series 13-A1, Medium Term
, Notes, Senior, Callable, 4.680% Oct 7, 2053 ... ......... 7,000......6,999....... 8,672
Par Fair - peroports de Montreal, Series H, Secured, Notes,
, Value Cost Value 5.67000 OCt 16, 2037 ..o e, 2,240......2,588....... 3,071
(in thousands) () () Alimentation Couche-Tard Inc., Series 4, Senior,
BONDS & DEBENTURES Unsecured, Notes, 4.214% Aug 21, 2020....... ......... 5,305...... 5,663....... 5,800
AltaGas Income Trust, Medium Term Notes, Senior,
CANADIAN BONDS Unsecured, 5.490% Mar 27, 2017 ............... ....... 10,000..... 10,613......10,744
Federal Bonds — 10.9% Altalink, L.P., Series 2011-1, Medium Term Notes,
Government of Canada, 1.000% Aug 1, 2016...... ...... 128,668... 129,292.... 129,556 Senior, Secured, 4.462% Nov 8, 2041.......c... oo...... 3,600......3,536....... 4,266
Government of Canada, 1.250% Aug 1, 2017...... ....... 16,738.... 16,928...... 17,041 AltaLink Investments LP, Series 15-1, Senior,
Government of Canada, Unsecured, 1.500% Mar 1, Unsecured, Notes, Callable, 2.244% Mar 7,
2020 .. s 109,444...112,824.... 113,252 2022 e e 7,922...... 7,923....... 7,913
Government of Canada, 2.750% Jun 1, 2022 ...... ......... 9,742.... 10,826...... 10,887 Bank of Montreal, Deposit Notes, Senior,
Government of Canada, 2.250% Jun 1, 2025 ...... ....... 34,783.... 37,327...... 37,678 Unsecured, 2.120% Mar 16,2022 ............... vonn... 13,664.... 13,659...... 13,769
Government of Canada, 5.000% Jun 1, 2037 ...... ....... 11,820.... 17,963......18,308 Bank of Nova Scotia, Deposit Notes, Senior,
Government of Canada, 3.500% Dec 1, 2045...... ....... 72,771.... 92,938...... 97,915 Unsecured, 1.330% May 1, 2018 .........ccceee e 4,638...... 4,637....... 4,631
............................................................................ 418,098.... 424,637  Bank of Nova Scotia, Deposit Notes, Senior,
' ' Unsecured, 2.270% Jan 13,2020 ................ wo...... 2,580......2,579....... 2,638
L. Bank of Nova Scotia, Fixed to Floating, Notes,
Provincial Bonds —11.5% subordinated, Callable, 2.580% Mar 30, 2027.. ....... 11,500.... 11,497...... 11,315
Ontario Hydro Corporation, Series 02, Euro BC Gas Utility, Ltd., Series B, Senior, Secured,
Medium Term Notes, Putable, 8.400% Nov 6, Mortgage, 10.300% Sep 30, 2016............... ....... 10,000..... 12,679...... 11,294
2020 oo 5,954......7,889....... 8,041 beimc Realty Corp, Series 6, Medium Term Notes,
Province of British Columbia, Debentures, 9.950% 565000 JaN 5, 2018 .. veeveerereerereereereene e, 11,500..... 12,195...... 12,840
LR I —_ 18,000.... 26,785......26,964 Bell Canada, Medium Term Notes, Senior,
Province of British Columbia, Series BCCD-T, Unsecured, 3.540% Jun 12, 2020...........vvrv oo, 13,705.... 14,245...... 14,676
Senior, Unsecured, Notes, 9.000% Aug 23, British Columbia Ferry Services Inc., Series 08-1,
2924 B s 20,880.... 31,814...... 33,545 Senior, Secured, Mortgage, 5.581% Jan 11,
Province of British Columbia, Unsecured, Notes, 2038 oo 7,100......8,048....... 9,514
3',200% Jun 18, 2044........ rrrnereenireeeenie e 33,814.... 33,599...... 37,148 British Columbia Ferry Services Inc., Series 13-1,
Province of Newfoundland, Series 5X, 10.950% Senior, Secured, Notes, Callable, 4.702% Oct
ADT1S, 2021 22,450.... 35,458.......34,575 23, 2003 oo, 3,000......3,000....... 3,661
Province of Nova Scotia, Debentures, 9.600% Jan British Columbia Telephone Company, Series 3,
30,2022 cccniernne e e 11,241..... 16,335......16,943 Unsecured, Debentures, 10.650% Jun 19, 2021 ....... 11,400.... 15,697...... 16,690
Pfov!nce of Ontaf!o, 3.150% Jun 2, 2022........... ....... 33,143.... 33,99...... 36,389 Brookfield Renewable Energy Partners ULC,
Province of Ontario, Unsecured, Notes, 3.500% Jun Medium Term Notes, Senior, Unsecured,
2,2024 oo e 46,769.... 48,723...... 52,573 375200 JUN 2, 2025, .o e, 5,230...... 5,230....... 5,293
Province of Ontario, Unsecured, 3.450% Jun 2,
2045 e e 84,671.... 81,367...... 95,288

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



BMO Monthly Income Fund

(unaudited)

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (cont’d)

March 31, 2015 (All amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise noted)

Par
Value
(in thousands)

Par
Value
(in thousands)

Calloway Real Estate Investment Trust, Series |,
Senior, Unsecured, Notes, 3.985% May 30,

2023 1o e, 2,065.......

Calloway Real Estate Investment Trust, Series N,

Senior, Unsecured, Notes, 3.556% Feb 6, 2025 ......... 4,958......

Cameco Corporation, Series D, Senior, Unsecured,

Notes, 5.670% Sep 2, 2019 ..........coooiiiiiin cnies 10,000.... 11,434

Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce, Deposit

Notes, Senior, Unsecured, 2.650% Nov 8, 2016 ........... 551........

Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce, Unsecured,

Notes, 2.350% Oct 18, 2017 ........ccooviiiiien ceennes 15,343.... 15,735

Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce, Deposit

Notes, Unsecured, 2.350% Jun 24, 2019........ ......... 8,500......

Canadian Utilities Limited, Series 1990-2,

Unsecured, Notes,11.770% Nov 30, 2020 ...... ......... 5,000......

Centra Gas Ontario Inc., Senior, Unsecured, Notes,

8.650% 0ct 19,2018 ....oovviiiiiiiiii 7,000......

Choice Properties Real Estate Investment Trust,
Series E, Senior, Unsecured, Notes, 2.297% Sep

Cogeco Cable Inc., Secured, Notes, Callable,

4.175% May 26,2023 ......coviiiiiiiiiis 4,500......

(U Inc., Senior, Unsecured, Debentures, 4.543%

OCt 24, 2087 e 5,000......

CU Inc., Senior, Unsecured, Notes, 3.805% Sep 10,

2042 e 4,365......

Dollarama Inc., Senior, Unsecured, Notes, 3.095%

NOV 5, 2018 ..o 10,950.... 11,048

Enbridge Gas Distribution Inc., Senior, Unsecured,

Debentures, 9.850% Dec 2, 2024...........ccccev cevnneen. 5,000......

FortisAlberta Inc., Senior, Unsecured, Notes,

5.400% APr 21, 2036 .....uevniiniiiiiiiiiiies e 1,100......

Gaz Metro and Company, Limited Partnership,
Series D, Secured, Mortgage, 10.450% Oct 31,

2016 ceneiiiii i e 15,900.... 20,887

GE Capital Canada Funding Company, Senior,

Unsecured, Notes, 2.420% May 31, 2018....... ......... 8,060......

GE Capital Canada Funding Company, Medium
Term Notes, Senior, Unsecured, 5.680% Sep 10,

2019 Lo 4,600......

Great-West Lifeco Inc., Senior, Unsecured, Notes,

Callable, 6.140% Mar 21, 2018 ........ceverees e 10,000..... 10,518

H&R Real Estate Investment Trust, Series H ,
Senior, Unsecured, Notes, Floating Rate, Oct 9,

20715 Lo 3,800......

Husky Energy Inc., Senior, Unsecured, Notes,

Callable, 3.550% Mar 12, 2025 .......cccceeveers vevennnn 6,814......

Hydro Ottawa Holdings, Inc., Senior, Unsecured,

Notes, Callable, 3.639% Feb 2, 2045............ ......... 3,090......

1GM Financial, Inc., Senior, Unsecured, Notes,

7.350% Apr8, 2019 ...ovviiniiiii 5,000......

Intact Financial Corporation, Series 1, Medium
Term Notes, Senior, Unsecured, 5.410% Sep 3,

2019 (o 14,128.... 15,118

Inter Pipeline Ltd., Series 7, Medium Term Notes,
Senior, Unsecured, Callable, 3.173% Mar 24,

Loblaw Companies Limited, Series 2-B, Medium
Term Notes, Senior, Unsecured, 5.220% Jun 18,

2020 .oiii e e, 5,000......

Manufacturers Life Insurance Company, The,
Notes, Subordinated, Callable, 4.210% Nov 18,

Manufacturers Life Insurance Company, The, Fixed
to Floating, Notes, Subordinated, Callable,

2.100% Jun 1, 2025 cncineeee e e 8,250
National Bank of Canada, Unsecured, Notes,

3.580% APr 26, 2016 ....uevveneeiiiniiiiiniien e 5,000
National Bank of Canada, Deposit Notes,

Unsecured, 2.702% Dec 15,2016 ......cccvvveer veenne. 11,100....
National Bank of Canada, Deposit Notes, Senior,

Unsecured, 1.742% Mar 3, 2020...........coeeev vevnneeen 6,180
National Bank of Canada, Deposit Notes, Senior,

Unsecured, 2.105% Mar 18,2022 ............... cevuneee. 7,271
North West Redwater Partnership/NWR Financing

Co. Ltd., Series C, Secured, Notes, Callable,

2.100% Feb 23, 2022.....c.viiiieeiieiiieee e, 6,182
North West Redwater Partnership/NWR Financing

Co. Ltd., Series D, Secured, Notes, Callable,

3.700% Feb 23,2043 ......oiivieiiieeeeeit e, 4,320
NOVA Gas Transmission Ltd., Series 23, Senior,

Unsecured, Debentures, 9.900% Dec 16, 2024. ....... 11,779....

RioCan Real Estate Investment Trust, Series Q,

Senior, Unsecured, Notes, 3.850% Jun 28, 2019 ......... 3,325
RioCan Real Estate Investment Trust, Series W,
Senior, Unsecured, Notes, 3.287% Feb 15,2024 ......... 4,125

Royal Bank of Canada, Senior, Unsecured, Notes,

2.680% Dec 8, 2016 .......cuuviveniiiiiiiiiiiin s 21,880....

Royal Bank of Canada, Deposit Notes, Senior,
Unsecured, 2.770% Dec 11,2018 ......eevneeen vevnneeen 8,200
Royal Bank of Canada, Deposit Notes, Senior,

Unsecured, 1.968% Mar 2, 2022..........c.ceeev ceenn.. 16,488....

Saputo Inc., Medium Term Notes, Senior,
Unsecured, 2.654% Nov 26, 2019............... ceeuneee. 3,400
Shaw Communications Inc., Senior, Unsecured,

Notes, Callable, 5.700% Mar 2, 2017 ........... ....... 15,500....

Shaw Communications Inc., Senior, Unsecured,

Notes, 5.500% Dec 7, 2020.........cccevvvvenins eenennnnn. 673
Sun Life Financial Inc., Series B, Fixed to Floating,

Senior, Unsecured, Notes, Callable, 4.950% Jun

1, 2036 e e 8,660
Suncor Energy, Inc., Medium Term Notes,

Unsecured, Callable, 3.100% Nov 26, 2021..... ......... 3,315
TELUS Corporation, Medium Term Notes, Senior,

Unsecured, 1.500% Mar 27, 2018 .........c...c. veeun.. 5,209
TELUS Corporation, Series CH, Senior, Unsecured,

Notes, 5.050% Jul 23,2020 .......cceeeeeererenes e, 6,000
TMX Group Ltd, Senior, Unsecured, Notes, 3.253%

0Ct3, 2018 e e, 7,500

Toronto Hydro Corporation, Series 11, Senior,

Unsecured, Notes, Callable, 3.550% Jul 28,

2045 Lo s 4,599
Toronto-Dominion Bank, The, Deposit Notes,

Senior, Unsecured, 2.433% Aug 15, 2017 ...... ....... 14,000....
Toronto-Dominion Bank, The, Deposit Notes,

Senior, Unsecured, 1.693% Apr 2, 2020 ........ ......... 4,945
Toronto-Dominion Bank, The, Deposit Notes,

Senior, Unsecured, 2.621% Dec 22, 2021....... ......... 4,221
Toyota Credit Canada Inc., Medium Term Notes,

Senior, Unsecured, 2.200% Oct 19, 2017 ....... ......... 3,658

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



BMO Monthly Income Fund

(unaudited)

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (cont’d)

March 31, 2015 (All amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise noted)

Par
Value
(in thousands)

Fair
Cost Value
) ()

Par
Value
(in thousands)

Fair
Cost Value
$) $)

TransAlta Corporation, Medium Term Notes,

Senior, Unsecured, 5.000% Nov 25,2020....... ......... 5112...
TransCanada PipeLines Limited, Medium Term

Notes, Senior, Unsecured, 9.350% May 27,

2019 i 11,200....

Union Gas Limited, Series 1993, Senior, Unsecured,

Notes, 8.750% Aug 3, 2018..........ccoevvviinn cennees 10,758....

Wells Fargo Financial Canada Corporation, Medium
Term Notes, Senior, Unsecured, 2.774% Feb 9,

Wells Fargo Financial Canada Corporation, Medium
Term Notes, Senior, Unsecured, 3.040% Jan 29,

15,565....... 14,461

13,320......13,218

2027 oo e 4,000...... 4,134....... 4,267
Wells Fargo Financial Canada Corporation, Medium

Term Notes, Senior, Unsecured, 3.460% Jan 24,

2023 L e 10,000.... 10,000...... 10,854
Winnipeg Airports Authority, Senior, Secured,

Notes, 4.569% Nov 20, 2019 .....vevveeeeereer e, 13,665.... 13,994...... 15,440
............................................................................ 611,666.... 624,790
Asset-Backed Securities — 0.1%

Hollis Receivable Term Trust Il, Series 2015-1,

Class A, Receivables-Backed, 1.788% Feb 26,

2020 .. s 4,858...... 4,858....... 4,884
Mortgage-Backed Securities — 0.1%

Real Estate Asset Liquidity Trust, Series 2007-2,

Class A1, 5.195% Mar 12, 2017.........ceeeevvvn cerennn. 2,518...... 2,511....... 2,632
Total Canadian Bonds — 38.7%0 ......cvvvvevnieninninnieninnnnens .1,454,216.. 1,508,496
FOREIGN BONDS
Germany — 0.3%

Daimler Canada Finance Inc., Senior, Unsecured,

Notes, 2.280% Feb 17, 2017.......ccovvvneeeiinn e, 2,000...... 2,034....... 2,032
Daimler Canada Finance Inc., Senior, Unsecured,

Notes, 2.270% Mar 26, 2018 .....veoveereereer eeeeene 5,000......5,054....... 5,128
Daimler Canada Finance Inc., Senior, Unsecured,

Notes, 1.420% Oct 2, 2018 .....eviveriiiiiiies e 2,935...... 2,935....... 2,936

Japan — 0.1%
Toyota Credit Canada Inc., Senior, Unsecured,
Notes, 1.800% Feb 19, 2020............cccoevvvn vennnenn. 5,900...
United Kingdom — 0.6%
BP Capital Markets PLC, Unsecured, Notes, 2.744%

Feb 24,2017 oo e 5,000...
BP Capital Markets PLC, Medium Term Notes,
Senior, Unsecured, 3.497% Nov 9, 2020........ ......... 5,915...

National Grid Electricity Transmission PLC, Euro

Medium Term Notes, Senior, Unsecured,

2.730% Sep 20, 2017 10,000...
United States — 0.7%
AT&T Inc., Senior, Unsecured, Notes, 3.825% Nov

25,2020 . i s 9,025...
Ford Credit Canada Ltd., Senior, Unsecured, Notes,
33200 DEC 19, 2017, vveeeeeeeeeeee e e, 13,400...

10,023...... 10,096

...5,8%....... 5,935

...5,000....... 5,102

5915 6,315

. 10,000....... 10,327

20,915....... 21,744

Ford Credit Canada Ltd., Senior, Unsecured, Notes,
3.700% Aug 2, 2018

.3123....... 3,188

26,147....... 26,870

Total Foreign Bonds — 1.7% ......vvunveuneinnennieinneineeineenne e 62,979..... 64,645
Total Bonds & Debentures — 40.4% ..............cceuveneennnn... .1,517,195.. 1,573,141
Number Fair
of Cost* Value
Units ©®) )

HOLDINGS IN EXCHANGE TRADED FUNDS
BMO MSCI EAFE Hedged to CAD Index ETF.......... .... 8,090,000... 141,759.... 162,787
BMO S&P 500 Index ETF...........covevvneiinneinnn . 2,500,000.... 44,150...... 72,168
Total Holdings in Exchange Traded Funds — 6.0%............... ... 185,908.... 234,955
Fair
Number of Cost* Value
Shares or Units $) $)

EQUITIES

CANADIAN EQUITIES
Consumer Discretionary — 3.4%

Canadian Tire Corporation, Limited, Class A........ ...... 170,500....
€0geCo (Able INCeuveeeeeeeereeiiiiieee e e 243,100....
DOllAarama INC. .....oevveeiiieii e e 211,200....
Magna International INC...........uuvuuiireeeeeiiiens wenen 370,000....
Restaurant Brands International Inc., Toronto

EXChANGe ... e, 203,813...
Shaw Communications Inc., Class B................. ...... 878,000....
Thomson Reuters COrporation............cceeeevvvnn veeen 385,200....

Consumer Staples — 1.7%

Alimentation Couche-Tard Inc., Class B............. ...... 495,000....
Jean Coutu Group (PJC) Inc., The, Class A........... ...... 484,600...
Metro INC..evneniee e s 505,000....
North West Company Inc., The, ........ccovvveeeiins oo 482,000....

Energy — 6.5%

ARCResources Ltd. ..........oeevvviiiiiiiiiieiieees e, 505,400....
Baytex Energy Corp.... ... 44,286...
Baytex Energy Corp., Treasury Offering, Apr 2,

2015 e e 70,714...
Canadian Natural Resources Limited................ ...... 413,100....
Cenovus Energy INC......oevveeeeniiiiniiiiiinen e 525,000....
ENDridge INC..oevvvvveiieiee s e 326,300....
Enbridge Income Fund Holdings INC................. ...... 392,100...
ENCana Corporation..........cceuueeeuneeeuneenineennn e 899,600....
GibSON ENETQY INCoovvveevei e e 295,900...
Inter Pipeline Ltd. ......ceevvveneeiiiiiieeeiiiee s e 468,500....
KeYera COMp. cuueeeneeeee e e, 274,200....
Mullen Group Ltd. ....oeeeeieriiiiiieie e e 334,600...
Pembina Pipeline Corporation...............ccoeeeern venees 603,500....
Peyto Exploration & Development Corp. ........... ...... 214,400...
Suncor Energy INC.....ooovviiiiiiiii 829,100....
TransCanada COrPOration. ...........ceeeererevvvvvnnn venen. 454,600....

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

13,052....... 21,999
12,412......16,509
10,760....... 14,953
17,652....... 25,053

9,494, ...... 9,897

20,266...... 24,953
14,085....... 19,780

. 97,721.... 133,144

16,234...... 24,983

..8,144......13,118

10,097...... 17,332
11,643......12,064

. 46,118...... 67,497

11,783......10,998

..... 7%......... 887

1,227, 1,397

16,155...... 16,037
11,665....... 11,209
17,558......19,921

...9,900...... 14,625

14,186...... 12,720

LTSI 7,687

15,922......15,292
14,727...... 23,101

...7,340....... 6,722

21,942....... 24,152

5187 7,281

30,922....... 30,685
19,993...... 24,621



BMO Monthly Income Fund

(unaudited)

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (cont’d)

March 31, 2015 (All amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise noted)

Fair Fair
Number of Cost* Value Number of Cost* Value
Shares or Units %) %) Shares or Units %) %)
VEIESEN INC.ueevvee e e 1,479,800.... 23,795...... 24,683 Northland POWer INC.....oovvvvneeiiieeeciiieeeeeen el 1,470,000.... 27,091...... 25,446
230,855.... 252,018 TransAlta Corporation 2,150,000..... 27,471....... 25,262
............................................................................ 187,154..... 206,644
Financials — 12.0% Total Canadian Equities —32.7% .......eevnvenneennenneennennns .1,076,814.. 1,274,036
Allied Properties REIT ..........ovoveeeeereeeerreee e, 466,700.... 14,812...... 18,799
Bank of Montreal.............. 425,100.... 27,450...... 32,265 FOREIGN EQUITIES
Bank of Nova Scotia 320,000.... 18,665......20333  Australia—0.3% ,
Brookfield Asset Management Inc., CIass A........ ...... 385,000.... 13,779......26,080 BHP Billiton Limited, Australian Exchange.......... ....... 30,806...... 1,074......... 909
Brookfield Property Partners LP..............c...c.. ...... 835,000.... 18,166......25,768 Brambles Industries Limited..............coooooiis s 55,406........ 535 ... 614
CAllOWAY REIT ..o e, 299,200......8,391....... 8,707 Coca-Cola Amatil Limited .........oooooviiiiiiis e 139,025......1,439........ 1,443
Canadian Apartment Properties REIT............... ..... 801,900.... 18,278...... 23,416 CochlearLimited........oooooiviiiiiini .
Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce.............. ...... 229,800.... 21,144...... 21,100 CSLLIMItRd. .o
CaNadian REIT ..o 452,500.... 19,805......21,046  Fortescue Metals Group Ltd
Chartwell Retirement Residences.............. 1,493,400.... 14,773......18.453  Newcrest Mining Limited ................
I Financial COMORAtion...........vvvveeveveerreere oo, 620,500.... 19,480......21,972  Sonic Healthcare Limited ...............
COMINAT REIT ..o 483,200......9,975....... 9,273 Svdney Airport, Stapled Security
DH COMPOTAtON .o oo 480,000.... 12,515......18,571  1elstra Corporation Limited
First Capital Realty INC.v..vvovvereeeeereerres . 1,280,000.... 23,814...... 25,254 Wesfarmers Limited..........oooooii
Manulife Financial COrporation..............cocceev. ... 440,000......9,383....... 9464  Westpac Banking Corporation ............oooooiis s 12,614........ 39......... 478
National Bank of CaNada .............ocovvovvevrevr oo, 210,800......8,744....... 9,747 Woodside Petroleum Ltd. ..o 24,502........ 818......... 812
RIOCAN REMeo oo 863,000..... 22,001...... 25,001 Woolworths Limited..............ccooeeiiiiineeiiiinn e, 21,530........ 716......... 611
Royal Bank of CaNada.........veeeeeereeeererees oo 835,000.... 50,757...... 63,660 1o 11,780......12,226
SUN Life FINANGIl INC. .o e 150,000...... 6,022........ 5,855  Austria —0.0%
Toronto-Dominion Bank, The, ... 1,180,000.... 44,929...... 63,968 ANAEtZ AG. ..o 3,463........ 257l 262
............................................................................ 382,883.... 468,737 OMVAG ..o el 132400248255
................................................................................. 505......... 517
Industrials — 0.6% Belgium — 0.2%
Canadian National Railway Company............... ...... 250,000.... 19,291....... 21,205 AGeas SA/NV ..ottt
Belgacom SA.......oeieeeeiiiiiiii e e
COlrUYE SA e,

Information Technology — 0.2%

Open Text COMPOTAtioN .....eevveevveeiiieeiiieeiiies e 90,000...... 6,052....... 6,017
Materials — 1.4%

Barrick Gold Corporation...... 553,500...... 7,071....... 7,666
Eldorado Gold Corporation.... 500,000...... 3,386....... 2,905
Franco-Nevada Corporation................cceeeerivnn ceee 400,000.... 20,881...... 24,552
GOIACOMP INCevvee e e 665,800.... 16,475...... 15,260
Silver Wheaton COomp.........vuveueeeeeeereieiiiiiies ceeen. 125,000...... 3,190....... 3,008
Tahoe RESOUTCES INC.....vveeeee e e, 200,000......3,083....... 2,776
............................................................................. 54,786......56,167
Telecommunication Services — 1.6%

BCEINCereneneie e s 570,000.... 19,503...... 30,563
Manitoba Telecom Services INC.............cceevvves oneen. 298,200.... 10,202....... 7,160
TELUS COMPOration .......ueevvneeiineiiieiiieeiiees eeeen. 591,500.... 22,249...... 24,884
............................................................................. 51,954...... 62,607
Utilities — 5.3%

Algonquin Power & Utilities COMp..........ceeevvvvnn veneen 120,000...... 1,105....... 1,123
ATCO Ltd., Class | .evveeeeeeeeeeeeeeene 271,000.... 11,410......12,228
Brookfield Infrastructure Partners L.P......... 443,900.... 15,966...... 25,600
Brookfield Renewable Energy Partners L.P... 489,100.... 15,202...... 19,564
Canadian Utilities Limited, Class A.................. ...... 610,000.... 22,737...... 24,260
Capital Power Corporation.............ccovvveerennn venen 950,000.... 21,987...... 23,284
EMETA NG e, 608,500.... 21,013...... 25,070
FOMIS INCeurvneieei e e 643,000.... 23,172...... 24,807

Groupe Bruxelles Lambert
SOIVAY SA..eeeeiiiieee e

Telenet Group Holding N.V...........ooooviiiiiiiins veeeeiis 9,654........ 631......... 672
UMICOTE e eie e aeeens 12,603........ 656......... 665
............................................................................... 5,298....... 5,585
Bermuda — 0.8%

Axis Capital Holdings Ltd...............ooveeiiiinns wennn. 124,400...... 7,146....... 8,127
RenaissanceRe Holdings Ltd. ...............ccceeeeee ennnn. 82,500...... 9,469...... 10,421
Validus Holdings, Ltd. ..........ovvereeeeeeiiiiiiiiin e, 198,500...... 8,302...... 10,584
............................................................................. 24,917......29,132
China — 0.0%

Yangzijiang Shipbuilding Holdings Limited.......... ...... 766,400........ 817......... 893
Denmark — 0.1%

A.P. Moller - Maersk A/S .....ooeeeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiies ceeeeeeeas 257........ 666......... 681
Novo Nordisk A/S, Class B...........coeeriirinneenes veees 17,233........ 897....... 1,168
............................................................................... 1,563....... 1,849
France — 0.2%

Aeroports de PariS...........eeeeeeeeeereeiiiiiiiin eeeeeees 1,813........ 259......... 275
Bureau Veritas SA .......oveiviiiie e e, 11,342........ 3120, 309
Electricite de France S.A...........coeevvieiiiieiiies e, 26,189........ 899......... 797
Eutelsat Communications..................coeeeeees o,

Societe BICS.A .oviviiiiecieeieenns
Suez Environnement SA..........ooiiiiiiiii e
TOtAl S.A. oe e s 9,866........ 731, 622

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Fair Fair

Number of Cost' Value Number of Cost’ Value

Shares or Units %) %) Shares or Units $) $)

ValloUreC S.A. oo 10,000........ 295..n..... 309 Yamazaki Baking Co., Ltd. ............ooovvviiiiinns ceees 41,000........ 857 uunn... 937
Veolia Environnement...........oooovveiiiieiiennn e T4 TAT 324 330 e 19,839...... 22,093

Vivendi S.A...............

Germany — 0.2%

AIBNZ SE...eieeeeeeeee e e 2,966, 585 653
Deutsche Telekom AG... 1,630
EON SE. e e 1,085
FIaPOMt AG.....eueeneeeiiiiieecneeeneeeee e 10,1430 00 7430 769
HUGO BOSS AG ....vevniiiiiiiiiiiiiciieieeieen eeneenn5,24200000... 830, 808
RWE Aktiengesellschaft..............ccoeeeeeeeeeenies venenn. 18,493........ 746......... 599
Telefonica Duetschland Holding AG................. ....... 84,238........ 584......... 617
............................................................................... 6,161
Hong Kong — 0.1%

China Mobile Limited, ADR ............ccceeveeiiies eeeenn6,200........ 441......... 511
CLP Holdings Limited............ccooeveeeeeeerrennnnns veeeee. 77,500........ 789......... 857
Hang Seng Bank Limited..............ccoeeviviieenns ceees 1,013
Li & Fung Limited............cccoevviiminiinnnneeeeees +eeel. 770,000...... 1,012, 951
Link Real Estate Investment Trust, The, ............ ....... 40,000........ 291......... 312
NWS Holdings Limited...............ovveieneeeeeernrs veeel. 242,000........ 512, 511
............................................................................... 4,155

Israel — 0.1%

Bank Hapoalim B.M. .........veevviiieeiiiiieeeeies e 120,561

Bezeq The Israel Telecommunication Corp., Ltd.... ...... 634,593......

Israel Chemicals Ltd. ..........coeevvvveeeiiiiiieeees e, 93,625........ 819......... 843
Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd. ................ ....... 11,581........ 827......... 914
............................................................................... 3,549....... 3,990
Italy — 0.1%

ENi S.PA. s 38,500........ 992......... 844
Snam Rete Gas S.P.A. ..o 93,768........ 543......... 575
Terna - Rete Elettrica Nazionale S.p.A........uuvenn oo 150,352......... 820......... 839
............................................................................... 2,355....... 2,258
Japan — 0.6%

Aeon €0, Ltd....oveniie e

Aisin Seiki Co., Ltd..........ooeiiiiii s

CANON INC.neeee e e e

Daito Trust Construction Co., Ltd.

Daiwa Securities Group Inc. ........

Hisamitsu Pharmaceutical Co., Inc

Hitachi Construction Machinery Co., Ltd............. ....... 49,200...... 1,050....... 1,090
Hokuriku Electric Power COMPaNY ...........ccceeer vevnnnn 57,300........ 900......... 962
Japan Airlines Co., Ltd. .........ccevrrrirriiiiiiiieees veeees 39,800...... 1,204....... 1,571
JGC COMPOTALION ... eeeeeeee et e 32,000........ 906......... 806
JX Holdings, INC. ....evvvneieeeeiiiiiiiiie e e 157,100........ 799......... 764
LAWSON, INCavveiii e s 11,400........ 901....... 1,002
Mizuho Financial Group, Inc

Nippon Telegraph and Telephone Corporation..... ....... 15,600...... 1,044....... 1,218
NTT Data Corporation

0saka Gas €o., Ltd........ovvvemmiiiiiiieeeeeieiiiies e, 149,000........ 651......... 790
Otsuka Holdings Co., Ltd. .....vvvunnieeeeereiiiiiiiis e, 22,400........ 852......... 889
Park24 Company Ltd...........oovvvvivieiiieneeeenees e, 70,000...... 1,508....... 1,816
Sankyo €o., Ltd. ....vveiiiieeiiie e e 21,100........ 861......... 952
Sharp Corporation ...........oevvvvuuneeeeeeeieiiiins e 222,000........ 602......... 551
Suntory Beverage & Food Limited .................. ...eees

TOKYO GAS CO., LTD. «eeveveeeeeiieencinennes

Tonengeneral Sekiyu KK.........

Luxembourg — 0.0%
SES S A e e 6,031........ 260......... 270
Subsea 7 S.A. .

Macau — 0.0%

MGM China Holdings Limited...................ccoev e 285,600...... 1,004......... 679
SJM Holdings Limited 506,000...... 1,204......... 835
............................................................................... 2,208....... 1,514
Netherlands — 0.0%

Royal Dutch Shell PLC, B Shares..........ccceeeeeees veenee 16,556........ 648......... 652
Royal Dutch Shell Pl¢, Class A, London Exchange.. ....... 11,006........ 431......... 414
............................................................................... 1,079....... 1,066
New Zealand — 0.0%

Spark New Zealand Limited .............cccoeevvvinn oo 380,000........ 847....... 1,068
Norway — 0.1%

DNB ASA. ... s 35,535........ 684......... 724
Gjensidige Forsikring ASA..........ccovveeeeiiiiiiiiis v 41,765......... 852......... 914
SEtOIl ASA ..eee e e

Telenor ASA...

Singapore — 0.1%

Ascendas REIT................ 402,400........ 871......... 961
Capitamall Trust............. 203,700........ 405.......... 413
Singapore Exchange Ltd.... 223,200...... 1,428....... 1,676
StarHub Limited...............ocoooieiiinil. 232,300........ 860......... 933
Wilmar International Limited 196,400........ 563......... 589
............................................................................... 4127....... 4,572
Spain — 0.1%

Abertis Infraestructuras S.A. ........ooveeivneiiiees venenn. 35,162........ 781......... 805
Amadeus IT Holding S.A., Class A ........oovvveeees veees 16,177........ 827......... 879
Banco Popular Espanol, S.A. ..........coeeeiiiiiinens e 75,000........ 403......... 464
ENAESA SA e e 35,000........ 836......... 855
GHFOIS, S.A.. e e e 12,037........ 598......... 655
Telefonica SA. ....oeeiivieeeciiieeee,

Telefonica S.A., Rights, Apr 13, 2015......

Zardoya OtiS SA......cevvvvneeriiiieeeea,

Sweden — 0.1%

Nordea Bank AB...........coeevuneiuniiieiiiieeiins 80,890...... 1,242....... 1,250
Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB, A Shares...... ....... 77,226...... 1123....... 1,144
Svenska Handelsbanken AB, A Shares.............. ....... 25,189...... 1,393....... 1,440
SWEADANK AB ..o e 50,455......1,487....... 1,527
............................................................................... 5,245......... 5,361
Switzerland — 0.0%
Roche HOldING AG ......coeeeeeeeiiiiiiiicieeee s e, 1,885........ 590......... 658
Taiwan — 0.1%
Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd., ADR .............covvv onnn.. 16,900........ LY:E - 686
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company

Limited, ADR .....oovneiieiee et e 22,700........ 458......... 675
United Microelectronics Corporation, ADR.......... ...... 526,100...... 1,247....... 1,626
............................................................................... 2,288....... 2,987
United Kingdom — 0.5%
AAMIral GroUP PIC...eveeeeiiieeeeeee e eeeees 38,989........ 989....... 1,119
Ashmore GroUP PlC.......vvvveeeeeeeeeeiiiiiiiiiiees ceeees 96,203........ 599, 513

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Fair Fair
Number of Cost' Value Number of Cost' Value
Shares or Units %) %) Shares or Units %) %)
AstraZeneca PLC, London Exchange.............cee veveens 9,809........ 887......... 852 GBP INC. e e 179,700...... 9,373....... 9,862
BHP Billiton Plc, London Exchange.................. ....... 26,475........ 764......... 728 HCP, INCuiee s e, 32,500...... 1,873....... 1,779
BP PG o e 126,397...... 1,039....... 1,034 Hospitality Properties Trust 240,300...... 7,814...... 10,041
ENSCO PIC, CIASS Aueveeeeeeieeie e e 166,800...... 8,354....... 4,451 Intel COrPOratioN. ......ceeeeeeereriiiiiiiiieeeeeeeees e 172,950...... 6,924....... 6,850
INMAISA PIC..eveeineeeeeeeieeiiiicieee e e eeeees e 20,401........ 283......... 354 International Business Machines Corporation...... ....... 42,000...... 7,699....... 8,538
InterContinental Hotels Group PLC..............cce. v 15,500........ 618......... 766 International Paper COMPANY ........cccevvvveneerns veeees 45,100...... 3,158....... 3,170
National Grid ple..........covvvveriiiiieeiiiieeeeiis e, 48,905........ 830......... 792 INUIE INC.. oo e, 19,600...... 2,308....... 2,407
NEXE PIC et e 6,964........ 916......... 919 Kellogg Company........ccoevervinniiiiiiiiiiiiiiies e 111,200...... 8,852....... 9,288
Noble Corporation PLC...........ovvvvenieeeeeereens veeens 100,000...... 2,258....... 1,809 Kimberly-Clark Corporation..........coeeeeeeeeereens ennnn. 62,200...... 7,535....... 8,438
Rio Tinto plc, London Exchange ............... 10,931........ 664......... 566 Kohl's Corporation........................ 49,200...... 4,785....... 4,876
Severn Trent Plc 21,565........ 813......... 834 LBrands INC............cevvvneiinneinnn.e, 84,600...... 5,463...... 10,103
SRITE PIC. e e 6,000........ 454......... 604 Las Vegas Sands COrp. ..........ccevnee. 121,100...... 8,530....... 8,442
SE PlC. v e e et eeeees 28,752........ 818......... 809 LyondellBasell Industries N.V., Class A.............. ....... 53,300...... 6,009....... 5,927
William Hill PLC......oooeie s e, 115,012........ 822......... 801 Marsh & McLennan Companies, INC. ................ ... 132,000...... 8,520....... 9,377
William Morrison Supermarkets PLC ................ ...... 307,183........ 955....... 1,112 Mattel, INC...oooveeii e e 55,000...... 1,591....... 1,592
............................................................................. 22,063......18,063 McDonald's Corporation.................ccvveeerevnnn ..een. 15,400......1,675....... 1,901
United States — 15.2% McGraw Hill Financial InC. ............cooveeeeiiinnn v, 51,600...... 3972....... 6,758
3M COMPANY....eeeeeeee e e 45,200....... 8,789....... 9,443 Micron Technology, INC.......oooeeeeeernniiiiiiiis e 98,100...... 3,430....... 3,371
Aflac INCOrPOrated. ........oveoveoeeeeeeeeeeeees e 35,400......2,32........ 2,870 Murphy Oil Corporation .................. 110,300......7,074....... 6,510
Alliant Energy COrporation................cccoeeeers conne.. 24,500......1,748....... 1,955 New York Community Bancorp, Inc. ... 495,500.......8,298...... 10,499
AltFia GrOUP, INC. ... e, 30,900......1,828....... 1,958 Newmont Mining Corporation........... 113,100...... 3,468....... 3,110
AMEIEN COMP. ..vveevreeeeeeeeee e en e 199,000...... 8,070...... 10,636 NextEra Energy, INCe...c..eeeneeniiniiiiiiiiiiinien e 58,737...... 6,912....... 7,141
American Electric Power Company, Inc 116,762...... 7,263....... 8,318 People‘s United Financial INC. .........ovveeeiiiinns e, 175,000...... 2,938....... 3,369
American Water Works Company, Inc......... 67,700...... 4,230....... 4,648 Pepco Holdings, INCeecn e e 196,425....... 6,024....... 6,675
AmerisourceBergen Corporation .............. 73,700......9,106...... 10,610 Pepsico, INC. ..o 78,200......8,828....... 9,471
APPIE INC. o 59,000......9,048....... 9,298 PAZEr INC. .oovvvviiiiii 184,200.......6,088....... 8,116
Archer Daniels Midland Company................... ...... 127,600......7,415....... 7,660  Philip Morris International Inc. .......... 78,500.......7,336....... 7,490
ATETINC. <. e 132,100......4,960....... 5463  Pinnacle West Capital Corporation ...... 120,800......7,428........ 9,754
CRBAM, INCeee e e 10,250......1,801....... 2,173 PPL COPOTALioN. ......oeeiiiiiiiiiiiiis T7,775......3,148....... 3,316
Cablevision Systems Corporation, Class A .... 444,900....... 8,368...... 10,312 Procter & Gamble Company, The, .......eeeeeeereies ennnn. 78,912...... 8,012....... 8,190
Campbell SOUp COMPANY .....ovveeveeneeeneeeeens e 98,000...... 5,471....... 5,778 Progressive Corporation, The, ..........ccoeeeeeeeeers venees 230,200...... 6,892....... 7,930
Capitol Federal Financial, Inc. ................. 665,700...... 8,819...... 10,539 Public Service Enterprise Group Incorporated...... ....... 70,830...... 3,376....... 3,761
Cardinal Health, INC..........oooveeeoeeeeeeeees e, 43,200......4,705....... 4,939 Public Storage, INC........ooooviiiiiiii 42,000......7,559......10,487
CONtUIYLIAK INCer. e e 213,000......8,294....... 9,321 R.R. Donnelley & Sons Company 258,700...... 4,7%....... 6,288
Chipotle Mexican Grill, INC. .........cc.ooovveeirrees v, 2,600...... 2,195....... 2,142 Rayonier INC........ccvveevuveeinneennnees 256,500.... 10,018....... 8,758
Clorox Company, The, .......c.ooeeeeeeeeeeeees e, 47,500......4,774........ 6,641 Reynolds AMerican INC..........ooeveneninines e 18,600......1,429....... 1,623
€C0BCN, NG+ 165,800......8,173....... 8,700  Safeway Inc, Casa Ley, S.A. de C.V., Contingent
C0ca-Cola COMPANY, THE, «...vveeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 76,700......3,79....... 3,939 Value Rights, Jan 30, 2019 ... i 196,800........... e 253
Colgate-Palmolive Company.. 120,800......8,263...... 10,609 Safeway Inc., Property Development Centers, LLC,
Commerce Bancshares, Inc. ....... 121,790......5,492....... 6,528 Contingent Value Rights, Jan 30, 2017"......... ...... 196,800........... RN 12
Computer Sciences Corporation ............... 101,250......8,445....... 8,371 Seagate Te(hnqlogy PLC 129,000....... 8,716....... 8,501
Consolidated EdiSON, INC. +......v.vvvveeoeeeeeeee o 119,675......8,319....... 9,246 Skyworks Solutions, Inc................... 26,300.......3,198........ 3,274
Crown Castle International COm. ........vvvvvevee v, 37,400......3,01....... 3,910 Southern Company, The,...........coooniiiin i, 173,800....... 8,199........ 9,747
Cullen/Frost Bankers, INC. ........vvvereeeeeeeriiiiis e 95,800...... 7,592....... 8,382 SOUthWQSI_em Energy Company .......coeeeeeeeeeeen ennnnn 56,700...... 2,507....... 1,665
DONAI 1€, INC.......ovoeeeeeeeeeeeeees e 15,400......1,570....... 1,583 - ROWe Price Group, InC...........oooovvvncn e 102,400....... 8,705.......10,503
Dr Pepper Snapple Group, INC. ....veeveeeeeeereres v, 54,723...... 4833....... 5,439 Target COrporation............oeeevueiriieiiineiinees veennes 76,200...... 7,572....... 7,921
Duke Energy COrporation ...........oeveveeeeeres voveve. 66,700......6,240....... 6,486  TECOEMEIGY, ..o 428,500.......8,168....... 10,529
Edwards Lifesciences corp. 53,600 ...... 6,098 ....... 9,671 Time Wame.f @@ble ..o 47,500 ...... 8,536 ....... 9,017
Entergy Corporation........... 103,600...... 8,018...... 10,168 X Compames, Inc., The, ..oovveennneenn. 18,100...... 1,564....... 1,606
EOG Resources, InC. ........... 30,000...... 3,690....... 3,484 TranSDIgm GrOUp |nc0rp0fated .......... 34,500...... 9,706....... 9,557
EPR PTOPEITIES .. vveverereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeees eeeas 110,600...... 6,270........ 8,400 VNS, ..o 25,000...... 2,302........ 2,312
Estee Lauder Companies |n(.,The, Class A oeee 69,200...... 7,051....... 7,289 Verizon Communications INC...........coevevvninennen venenes 83,400...... 4,417....... 5,137
Everest Re Group, Ltd. ......ovveveeereeeeeeeeerens e 18,300......3,279....... 4,033 WAl-Mart Stores, INC.......oooovviiiiiiiiiis s 90,900.......9,581........ 9,469
E5 Networks INC. oo 21,900...... 3,170....... 3,188 Windstream Holdings, INC........coveveeeeereiiiiiinn e, 219,200...... 2,375....... 2,054
Federated Investors Inc., Class B.................... ...... 249,600...... 7,854...... 10,714
FirstEnergy Corporation ...........c..ovveeivviveeenn veveee 46,400...... 1934....... 2,060
Franklin Resources, INC.............coeevveeeeueeinnes eeeen. 24,300...... 1,587....... 1,579

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (cont’d)

March 31, 2015 (All amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise noted)

Fair

Number of Cost' Value

Shares or Units %) %)

Xcel ENETQY INC..evvvvveviiiieeeeeeeeeeveeevviiien o 176,737, 6,938....... 7,792

525,602.... 593,649

Total Foreign Equities — 18.9% 661,223.... 734,699

Total EQUIties — 51.6%0 ....veeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenenns .1,738,037.. 2,008,735
Total Investment Portfolio —99.2%...........cccevvneeninnnnnnn. .3,488,858.. 3,864,584
Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Currency Contracts — 0.0% ............ce. veeeeeenne 30
Other Assets Less Liabilities — 0.8%0...........ouvirneeiieeiiieeieeeeeie e, 31,112

NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE UNITS - 100.0%..... .. 3,895,726

+ Where applicable, distributions received from holdings as a return of capital are
used to reduce the adjusted cost base of the securities in the portfolio.
These securities have no quoted market value and are valued using valuation
techniques (note 3).

Settlement Currency Position Currency Position Contract Credit Unrealized
Date Buy (000s) Sell (000s) Rates Counterparty Rating® Gain
UNREALIZED GAIN ON FORWARD CURRENCY CONTRACTS

8-API-15. et e, CAD ........... 321200, AUD ......... (3,300)......... 0.9734...... Bank of New York Mellon Trust Co. N.A. (The)....... A1+ .30

Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Currency CONrACts .....uvevveneeennnrerinrerineennnnnnns

“Credit Rating provided by Standard & Poor's.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per unit data)
March 31, 2015

1.The Mutual Fund

BMO Monthly Income Fund (the “Fund”) is an open-
ended investment fund established under the laws of
the province of Ontario and is governed by a Master
Declaration of Trust dated November 6, 2007. The
Master Declaration of Trust was amended on October
23, 2008 and November 3, 2009 to permit certain funds
to offer a multi-series structure. In addition to the
existing Series A units, certain Funds are permitted
to offer Advisor Series, Series T5, Series T6, Series M,
Series F, Premium Series, Series D, Series H, Series

I, Series NBA, Series NBF, Series O, Series L, Series

R and/or Classic Series units. Each series is intended
for different kinds of investors and has different
management fees and fixed administration fees.
Refer to Note 8 for the Fund’s series and respective
launch date(s) and for the management fee rates and
administration fee rates for each series.

BMO Investments Inc. (“the Manager”) is the Manager
and Trustee of the Fund. The Manager is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Bank of Montreal. The address

of the Fund’s registered office is 100 King Street West,
Toronto, Ontario.

The information provided in these interim financial
statements is for the periods ended March 31, 2015 and
March 31, 2014 except for the comparative information
in the Statement of Financial Position and the related
notes, which are as at September 30, 2014 and October
1, 2013. Financial information for a Fund established
during the period(s) is presented from the date of
inception as noted in Note 8. Financial information
provided for a series established during the period(s) is
presented from the launch date as noted in Note 8.

These financial statements were authorized for issue
by the Manager on May 13, 2015.

2.Basis of preparation and presentation

These interim financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Accounting Standards
(“IAS”) IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting. These are
the Fund’s first interim financial statements during

the first year of reporting in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”).

Asrequired by Canadian securities legislation and the
Canadian Accounting Standards Board, the Fund has
adopted this basis of accounting effective October 1,

2014. The Fund’s financial statements were previously
prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles (“Canadian GAAP”), as
previously defined and as described in the notes to the
Fund’s annual financial statements for the year ended
September 30, 2014. Canadian GAAP, as previously
defined, differs in some areas from IFRS. To comply
with IFRS, the Fund has amended certain accounting
policies, classification, measurement and disclosure
previously applied in the Canadian GAAP financial
statements. Financial information related to all periods
have been presented on a consistent basis.

Asrequired under IFRS, as applicable, the Fund has:

e provided comparative financial information includ-
ing an opening Statement of Financial Position as at
the transition date

e retroactively applied all IFRS, other than in respect of
elections taken under IFRS 1; and

e applied all mandatory exceptions as applicable for
the first-time adopters of IFRS.

Note 8 contains reconciliations and descriptions of the
effects of the transition to IFRS on the Fund's reported
financial position, financial performance and cash
flows.

Any subsequent changes to IFRS that are given effect
in the Fund’s annual financial statements for the year
ending September 30, 2015 could result in restatement
of these interim financial statements, including the
transition adjustments recognized on transition to
IFRS.

3.Summary of significant accounting policies

Fund mergers

The Manager has adopted the purchase method of
accounting for certain Fund mergers which occurred
during the periods. Under this method, one of the
Funds in each merger is identified as the acquiring
Fund, and is referred to as the “Continuing Fund”, and
the other Fund involved in the merger is referred to as
the “Terminated Fund”. This identification is based
on the comparison of the relative net asset values of
the Funds as well as consideration of the continuation
of such aspects of the Continuing Fund as: investment
advisors; investment objectives and practices; type

of portfolio securities; and management fees and
expenses. Where applicable, refer to Note 8 for the
details of the merger transactions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
(All amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per unit data)
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Financial instruments

The Fund records financial instruments at fair value.
Investment transactions are accounted for on the trade
date. The Fund’s investments are either designated at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) at inception
or classified as held for trading. The changes in the
investment fair values and related transaction costs are
recorded in the Fund’s Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

Financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading
are those acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near future,
or on initial recognition, are part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Fund manages
together and that have a recent actual pattern of short-
term profit taking. The Fund classifies all derivatives
and short positions as held for trading. The Fund does
not designate any derivatives as hedges in a hedging
relationship.

The Fund designates all other investments at FVTPL,
as they have reliably measurable fair values, are

part of a group of financial assets or liabilities that
are managed and have their performance evaluated
on a fair value basis in accordance with the Fund’s
investment strategy.

The Fund has issued multiple series of redeemable
units, subordinated but are not identical and
consequently, do not meet the conditions to be
classified as equity. As aresult, the Fund’s obligations
for net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
units are classified as financial liabilities and presented
at the redemption amounts.

All other financial assets and liabilities are measured at
amortized cost. Under this method, financial assets and
liabilities reflect the amount required to be received or
paid or discounted, when appropriate, at the contract’s
effective interest rate.

The Fund has determined that it meets the definition
of “investment entity” and as a result, it measures
subsidiaries at FVTPL.

Cost of investments

The cost of investments represents the amount paid
for each security and is determined on an average cost
basis.

Fair value measurement

Investments are recorded at their fair value with the
change between this amount and their average cost
being recorded as change in unrealized appreciation
(depreciation) in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

For exchange traded securities close prices are
considered to be fair value if they fall within the bid-
ask spread. In circumstances where the close price is
not within the bid-ask spread, the Manager determines
the point within the bid-ask spread that is most
representative of fair value based on the specific facts
and circumstances.

Procedures are in place to fair value securities traded
in countries outside of North America daily, to avoid
stale prices and to take into account among other
things, any significant events occurring after the close
of a foreign market.

For bonds, debentures, asset-backed securities and
other debt securities fair value is represented by bid
prices provided by independent security pricing
services. Short-term investments, if any, are carried
at amortized cost which approximates fair value.
Unlisted warrants, if any, are valued based on a
pricing model which considers factors such as the
market value of the underlying security, strike price
and terms of the warrant. Exchange traded funds
held as investments are valued at close prices except
for related exchange traded funds which are valued
at their respective Net Asset Value (“NAV”) on each
Valuation Date (the “Valuation Date” is each day on
which the Toronto Stock Exchange is open for trading),
as these values are the most readily and regularly
available.

For securities where market quotes are not available,
unreliable or not considered to reflect the current
value, the Fund may determine another value which

it considers to be fair and reasonable, or using a
valuation technique that, to the extent possible,

makes maximum use of inputs and assumptions

based on observable market data including volatility,
comparable companies and other applicable rates

or prices. These estimation techniques include
discounted cash flows, internal models that utilize
observable data or comparisons with other securities
that are substantially similar. In limited circumstances,
the Fund uses internal models where the inputs are not
based on observable market data.
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Derivative instruments

Derivative instruments are financial contracts that
derive their value from underlying changes in interest
rates, foreign exchange rates or other financial or
commodity prices or indices.

Derivative instruments are either regulated exchange-
traded contracts or negotiated over-the-counter
contracts. The Fund may use these instruments for
trading purposes, as well as to manage the Fund’s risk
exposures.

Derivatives are marked to fair value. Discussion of the
fair value measurement of derivatives is included in
Note 3. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are
recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Forward currency contracts

A forward currency contract is an agreement between
two parties (the Fund and the counterparty) to
purchase or sell a currency against another currency
at a set price on a future date. The Fund may enter

into forward currency contracts for hedging purposes
which can include the economic hedging of all or a
portion of the currency exposure of an investment

or group of investments, either directly or indirectly.
The Fund may also enter into these contracts for non-
hedging purposes which can include increasing the
exposure to a foreign currency or the shifting exposure
to foreign currency fluctuations from one country to
another. The value of forward currency contracts
entered into by the Fund is recorded as the difference
between the value of the contract on the Valuation Date
and the value on the date the contract originated.

Option contracts

The Fund may engage in option contract transactions
by purchasing (long positions) or writing (short
positions) call or put option contracts. These contracts
have different risk exposures for the Fund: whereas the
risk for long positions will be limited to the premium
paid to purchase the option contracts, the risk exposure
for the short positions are potentially unlimited until
closed or expired.

Purchased option contracts

The premium paid for purchasing a call option is
recorded as an asset in the Statement of Financial
Position. The premium is valued on each Valuation
Date at an amount equal to the fair value of the option
that would have the effect of closing the position.

The change in the difference between the premium
and the fair value is shown as “Change in unrealized
appreciation (depreciation)” in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

When a purchased option expires, the Fund will realize
aloss equal to the premium paid. When a purchased
option is closed, the gain or loss the Fund will realize
will be the difference between the proceeds and the
premium paid. When a purchased call option is
exercised, the premium paid is added to the cost of
acquiring the underlying security. When a purchased
put option is exercised, the premium paid is subtracted
from the proceeds from the sale of the underlying
security that had to be sold.

Written option contracts

The premium received from writing a call or put option
is recorded as a liability in the Statement of Financial
Position.

When a written option expires, the Fund will realize
a gain equal to the premium received. When a written
option is closed, the Fund will realize a gain or loss
equal to the difference between the cost at which

the contract was closed and the premium received.
When a written call option is exercised, the premium
received is added to the proceeds from the sale of the
underlying investments to determine the realized gain
or loss. When a written put option is exercised, the
premium received will be subtracted from the cost of
the underlying investment the Fund had purchased.

The gain or loss that the Fund realizes when a
purchased or written option is exercised or closed is
recorded as “Net realized gain (loss)” in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income.

Futures contracts

Futures contracts are financial agreements to purchase
or sell a financial instrument at a contracted price on a
specified future date. Futures contracts are valued at
the gain or loss that would arise as a result of closing
the position at the Valuation date, the “notional value”.
Any difference between the notional value on each
Valuation Date is recorded as “Net realized gain (loss)”
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Treasury
bills or cash are held as margin against futures
contracts.
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Income recognition

Dividend income and distributions from investment
trust units are recognized on the ex-dividend and ex-
distribution date, respectively.

Interest income from interest bearing investments is
recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
using the effective interest rate. Interest receivable
shown in the Statement of Financial Position is accrued
based on the interest bearing instruments’ stated rates
of interest.

Interest on inflation-indexed bonds is paid based

on a principal value, which is adjusted for inflation.
The inflation adjustment of the principal value is
recognized as part of interest income in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income. If held to maturity, the
Fund will receive, in addition to a coupon interest
payment, a final payment equal to the sum of the par
value and the inflation compensation accrued from
the original issue date. Interest is accrued on each
Valuation Date based on the inflation adjusted par
value at that time and is included in “Interest income”
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Foreign currency translation

The fair value of investments and other assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into the
Fund’s functional currency at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the period-end date. Purchases and

sales of investments, and income and expenses are
translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on

the respective dates of such transactions. Foreign
exchange gains (losses) on completed transactions are
included in “Realized gains (losses)” and unrealized
foreign exchange gains (losses) are included in
“Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation)”
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Foreign
exchange gains and losses relating to cash, receivables
and payables are included as "Foreign exchange gain
(loss)".

Securities lending

A Fund may engage in securities lending pursuant to
the terms of an agreement which includes restrictions
as set out in Canadian securities legislation. Collateral
held is government Treasury Bills and qualified Notes.

Income from securities lending, where applicable, is
included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
and is recognized when earned. The market value of
the securities loaned and collateral held is determined

daily. Aggregate values of securities held in trust as
at March 31, 2015, September 30, 2014 and October 1,
2013, where applicable, are disclosed in Note 8.

Short-term trading penalty

To discourage excessive trading, the Fund may, at the
Manager’s sole discretion, charge a short-term trading
penalty. This penalty is paid directly to the Fund and is
included in “Short-term penalty fees” in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income.

Cash

Cash is comprised of cash and deposits with banks
which include banker acceptances and overnight
demand deposits. Cash is recorded at amortized cost.

Other assets and other liabilities

Dividend receivable, interest receivable, distributions
from investment trust units receivable, due from
broker and subscriptions receivable are measured at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortized
cost. Similarly, due to broker, redemptions payable and
accrued expenses are initially measured at amortized
cost. Other assets and liabilities are short-term in
nature, and are carried at cost or amortized cost, which
approximates fair value.

Increase or decrease in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable units

“Increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable units per unit” of a series in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income represents the
increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable units (“Net Assets”) of the series divided
by the weighted average number of units of the series
outstanding during the period.

Taxation

The Fund qualifies as a unit trust under the provisions
of the Income Tax Act (Canada). Distributions of all
net taxable income and sufficient amounts of net
realized capital gains for each taxation year will be
paid to unitholders so that the Fund will not be subject
to income tax. As a result, the Fund has determined
that it is in substance not taxable and therefore

does not record income taxes in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income nor does it recognize any
deferred tax assets in the Statement of Financial
Position.

The Fund incurs withholding taxes imposed by certain
countries on investment income and capital gains.
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Such income and gains are recorded on a gross basis
with the related withholding taxes shown as a separate
expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Investments in associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Fund has
control through its exposure or rights to variable
returns from its investment and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The
Fund has determined that it is an investment entity
and as such, it accounts for subsidiaries at fair value.
Joint ventures are those where the Fund exercises joint
control through an agreement with other shareholders,
and associates are investments in which the Fund
exerts significant influence over operating, investing,
and financing decisions (such as entities in which the
Fund owns 20% - 50% of voting shares), all of which
have been designated at FVTPL.

Unconsolidated structured entities

The Fund has determined that the underlying funds in
which the Fund invests are unconsolidated structured
entities. This determination is based on the fact that
decision making about the underlying funds is not
governed by the voting right or other similar right held
by the Fund. Similarly, investments in securitizations,
asset-backed securities and mortgage-backed securities
are also disclosed as interest in unconsolidated
structured entities.

The Fund invests in underlying funds whose
investment objectives range from achieving short —
term to long-term income and capital growth potential.
Underlying funds may use leverage in a manner
consistent with their respective investment objectives
and as permitted by Canadian securities regulatory
authorities. Underlying funds finance their operations
by issuing redeemable units which are puttable

at the holders’ option and entitles the holder to a
proportionate stake in the respective Fund’s net assets.
The change in fair value of each of the underlying
funds during the periods is included in “Change in
unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of investments”
in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

Mortgage-related securities are created from pools of
residential or commercial mortgage loans, including
mortgage loans made by savings and loan institutions,
mortgage bankers, commercial banks and others.
Asset-backed securities are created from many types

of assets, including auto loans, credit card receivables,
home equity loans and student loans.

The Fund does not provide and has not committed

to providing any additional significant financial
information or other support to the unconsolidated
structured entities other than its investment in the
unconsolidated structured entities. During the periods,
the Fund had no sponsored unconsolidated structured
entities.

Additional information on the Fund’s interest in
unconsolidated structured entities, where applicable,
is provided in Note 8.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial instruments are presented at net or gross
amounts on the Statement of Financial Position
depending on the existence of intention and legal
right to offset opposite positions of such instruments
held with the same counterparties. Amounts offset in
the Statement of Financial Position are transactions
for which the Fund has legally enforceable rights

to offset and intends to settle the positions on a net
basis. Amounts not offset in the Statement of Financial
Position relate to transactions where a master netting
arrangement or similar agreement is in place with a
right to offset only in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy, or where the Fund has no intention to
settling on a net basis.

Accounting standards issued but not yet adopted

Below are accounting standards issued or amended
but not yet effective and not yet adopted. The Manager
does not expect the adoption of these standards or
amendments to have significant impact to the Fund’s
financial statements.

In July 2014, the IASB issued the most recent version
of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, which addresses
classification and measurement, impairment and
hedge accounting.

The new standard requires assets to be carried at
amortized cost, fair value through profit and loss or
fair value through comprehensive income based on the
entity’s business model for managing financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset. The classification and measurement

of liabilities remains generally unchanged with the
exception of liabilities recorded at fair value through
profit and loss. For these liabilities, fair value changes
attributable to changes in the entity’s own credit risk
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are to be presented in other comprehensive income
unless they affect amounts recorded in income.

The new standard also addresses impairment of
financial assets. It also introduced a new hedge
accounting model that expands the scope of eligible
hedged items and risks eligible for hedge accounting,
and aligns hedge accounting more closely with risk
management.

The new standard is effective for the Fund for its fiscal
year beginning October 1, 2018. The Fund is evaluating
the impact of this standard on its financial statements.

4.Critical accounting estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements requires the
use of judgement in applying the Fund’s accounting
policies and to make estimates and assumptions
about the future. The following discusses the most
significant accounting judgements and estimates
that the Fund has made in preparing its financial
statements:

Accounting judgements:

Functional and presentation currency

The Fund unitholders are mainly Canadian residents,
with the subscriptions and redemptions of the
redeemable shares denominated in Canadian dollars.
The Fund invests in Canadian and U.S. dollars and
other foreign denominated securities, as applicable.
The performance of the Fund is measured and reported
to the investors in Canadian dollars. The Manager
considers the Canadian dollar as the currency that
most faithfully represents the economic effects of the
underlying transactions, events and conditions. The
financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars,
which is the Fund's functional and presentation
currency.

Classification of measurement of financial instruments and
application of fair value option

In classifying and measuring financial instruments
held by the Fund, the Manager is required to make
significant judgements about whether or not the
business of the Fund is to invest on a total return basis
for the purpose of applying the fair value options for
financial assets.

Accounting estimates:

Fair value measurement of securities not quoted in an
active market

The Fund has established policies and control
procedures that are intended to ensure these
judgements are well controlled, independently
reviewed, and consistently applied from period to
period. The estimates of the value of the Fund’s assets
and liabilities are believed to be appropriate as at the
reporting date.

The Fund may hold financial instruments that are
not quoted in active markets. Note 3 discusses the
estimates used in determining fair value.

5.Units and unit transactions

The redeemable units of the Fund are classified as
liabilities.

The units have no par value and are entitled to
distributions, if any. Upon redemption, a unit is
entitled to a proportionate share of the Fund’s NAV.
The Fund is required to pay distributions in an amount
not less than the amount necessary to ensure the
Fund will not be liable for income taxes. The Fund
has no restrictions or specific capital requirements
on the subscriptions and redemptions of units except
as disclosed in Note 8. The relevant movements

in redeemable units are shown on the Statement

of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Units. In accordance with its investment
objectives and strategies, and the risk management
practices outlined in Note 7, the Fund endeavours

to invest the subscriptions received in appropriate
investments, while maintaining sufficient liquidity
to meet redemptions, with such liquidity being
augmented by short-term borrowings or disposal of
investments where necessary.

Redeemable units of the Fund are offered for sale on a
continuous basis and may be purchased or redeemed
on any Valuation Date at the NAV per unit of a
particular series. The NAV per unit of a series for the
purposes of subscription or redemption is computed by
dividing the NAYV of the Fund attributable to the series
(that is, the total fair value of the assets attributable to
the series less the liabilities attributable to the series)
by the total number of units of the series of the Fund
outstanding at such time on each Valuation Day, in
accordance with Part 14 of National Instrument (NI)
81-106 Investment Fund Continuous Disclosure for
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the purpose of processing unitholder transactions. Net
Assets are determined in accordance with IFRS and
may differ to the Funds’ NAV. Where a Funds’ NAV is
not equal to its Net Assets, a reconciliation is shown in
Note 8.

Expenses directly attributable to a series are charged
to that series. Other expenses, income, realized

and unrealized gains and losses from investment
transactions are allocated proportionately to each
series based upon the relative NAV of each series.

6.Related party transactions

(a) Management Fees

The Manager is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Fund and its investment portfolio
in compliance with the Fund’s constating documents.
The Manager provides key management personnel

to the Fund, monitors and evaluates the performance
of the Fund, pays for the investment management
services of the investment advisors and provides

all related administrative services required by the
Fund. As compensation for its services the Manager is
entitled to receive a fee payable monthly, calculated at
the maximum annual rates included in Note 8.

(b) Fixed administration fees

The Manager pays certain operating expenses of the
series A, Advisor, T5, T6, T8, M, F, Premium, D, H,

O, L, R and Classic including audit and legal fees and
expenses; custodian and transfer agency fees; costs
attributable to the issue, redemption and change of
securities, including the cost of the securityholder
record keeping system; expenses incurred in respect
of preparing and distributing prospectuses, financial
reports and other types of reports, statements

and communications to securityholders; fund
accounting and valuation costs; filing fees, including
those incurred by the manager (collectively the
“Administration Expenses”). In return, the Fund pays
a fixed administration fee to the Manager. The fixed
administration fee is calculated daily as a fixed annual
percentage of the average NAV of the Fund. Refer to
Note 8 for the fixed administration fee rates charged to
the Fund.

(¢) Fund expenses

The Fund also pays certain operating expenses directly
("Fund Expenses"), including expenses incurred

in respect of preparing and distributing fund facts;
interest or other borrowing expenses; all reasonable

costs and expenses incurred in relation to compliance
with NI 81-107, including compensation and

expenses payable to Independent Review Committee
("IRC") members and any independent counsel or
other advisors employed by the IRC, the costs of the
orientation and continuing education of IRC members
and the costs and expenses associated with IRC
meetings; taxes of all kinds to which the Fund is or
might be subject; and costs associated with compliance
with any new governmental or regulatory requirement
introduced after December 1, 2007.

The Manager may, in some years and in certain
cases, absorb a portion of management fees, fixed
administration fees or certain specified expenses

of the Fund or series of the Fund. The decision to
absorb these expenses is reviewed periodically and
determined at the discretion of the Manager, without
notice to unitholders.

(d) variable administration fees

The NBA and NBF series pay all of its operating
expenses directly. These operating expenses include
Administration Expenses and Fund Expenses.

(e) Commissions and other portfolio transaction costs
The Fund may execute trades with and or through
BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc., an affiliate of the Manager
based on established standard brokerage agreements
at market prices. These fees are included in
“Commissions and other portfolio transaction costs” in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Refer to Note
8 for related party fees charged to the Fund during the
period(s) ended March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014,
where applicable.

(f) Initial investments

In order to establish a new Fund, the Manager makes
an initial investment in the Fund. Pursuant to the
policies of the Canadian Securities Administrators, an
initial investor cannot redeem its investments until an
additional $500 has been received from other investors
with respect to the same class of units. Refer to Note

8 for the investment in units of the Fund held by the
Manager as at March 31, 2015, September 30, 2014 and
October 1, 2013, where applicable.

(g) Other related party transactions

From time to time, the Manager may on behalf of the
Fund enter into transactions or arrangements with
or involving subsidiaries and affiliates of Bank of
Montreal or certain other persons or companies that
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are related or connected to the Manager of the Fund.
These transactions or arrangements may include
transactions or arrangements with or involving
subsidiaries and affiliates of Bank of Montreal, BMO

Investments Inc., BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc., BMO Private

Investment Counsel Inc., BMO Asset Management
Corp., BMO Asset Management Inc., BMO
InvestorLine, Pyrford International Limited, Monegy
Inc., Lloyd George Management (Europe) Limited,

BMO Trust Company, F&C Asset Management Limited,

BMO Global Asset Management (Asia) Limited Hong
Kong, or other investment funds offered by BMO, and
may involve the purchase or sale of Fund securities
through or from a member of Bank of Montreal, the
purchase or sale of securities issued or guaranteed
by a member of Bank of Montreal, the purchase or
redemption of units or shares of other BMO Mutual
Funds or the provision of services to the Manager.

7.Financial instrument risk

The Fund’s activities expose it to a variety of risks
associated with the financial instruments, as follows:
market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk
and other market risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The concentration table groups securities by asset
type, geographic location and/or market segment.
The Fund’s risk management practice outlines the
monitoring of compliance to investment guidelines.

The Manager manages the potential effects of

these financial risks on the Fund’s performance

by employing and overseeing professional and
experienced portfolio managers that regularly monitor
the Fund’s positions, market events and diversify
investment portfolios within the constraints of the
investment guidelines.

Where the Fund invests in other investment fund(s), it
may be indirectly exposed to the financial instrument
risk of the underlying fund(s), depending on the
investment objectives and the type of securities held
by the underlying fund(s). The decision to buy or

sell an underlying fund is based on the investment
guidelines and positions, rather than the exposure of
the underlying fund(s).

(a) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial
instruments denominated in currencies, other than
the functional currency of the Fund, will fluctuate due
to changes in foreign exchange rates. Investments

in foreign markets are exposed to currency risk

as the prices denominated in foreign currencies

are converted to the Fund’s functional currency in
determining fair value. The Fund may enter into
forward currency contracts for hedging purposes

to reduce foreign currency exposure or to establish
exposure to foreign currencies. The Fund’s exposure
to currency risk, if any, is further disclosed in Note 8.

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of the
Fund's interest-bearing investments will fluctuate
due to changes in market interest rates. The Fund's
exposure to interest rate risk is concentrated in its
investment in debt securities (such as bonds, money
market instruments, short-term investments and
debentures) and interest rate derivative instruments,
if any. Other assets and liabilities are short-term

in nature and/or non-interest bearing. The Fund's
exposure to interest rate risk, if any, is further
discussed in Note 8.

(c) Other market risk

Other market risk is the risk that the fair value of

a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices (other than those arising
from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all
similar financial instruments traded in a market. Other
assets and liabilities are monetary items that are short-
term in nature, as such they are not subject to other
market risk. The Fund's exposure to other market risk,
if any, is further discussed in Note 8.

(d) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a loss could arise from

a security issuer or counterparty to a financial
instrument not being able to meet its financial
obligations. The fair value of debt securities includes
consideration of the credit worthiness of the debt
issuer. Credit risk exposure for over-the-counter
derivative instruments is based on the Fund's
unrealized gain of the contractual obligations with
the counterparty as at the reporting date. The credit
exposure of other assets is represented by its carrying
amount. The Fund's exposure to credit risk, if any, is
further discussed in Note 8.

The Fund may enter into securities lending
transactions with approved counterparties. Credit
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risk associated with these transactions is considered
minimal as all counterparties have a sufficient
approved credit rating and the market value of
collateral held by the Fund must be at least 102% of the
fair value of securities loaned, as disclosed in Note 8.

(e) Liquidity risk

The Fund's exposure to liquidity risk is concentrated
in the daily cash redemptions of units. The Fund
primarily invests in securities that are traded in active
markets and can be readily disposed. In addition,

the Fund retains sufficient cash and cash equivalent
positions to maintain liquidity. The Fund may, from

time to time, enter into over-the-counter derivative
contracts or invest in unlisted securities, which are
not traded in an organized market and may be illiquid.
Securities for which a market quotation could not

be obtained and may be illiquid are identified on the
Schedule of Investment Portfolio. The proportion of
illiquid securities to the NAV of the Fund is monitored
by the Manager to ensure it does not exceed the
regulatory limit and does not significantly affect

the liquidity required to meet the Fund's financial
obligations.
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8. Fund specific information

(3) Fund and Series information, change in units and
significant events

The Fund is authorized to issue an unlimited number
of units in each of Series A Units, Series T6 Units,
Series F Units, Premium Series Units, Series D Units,
Series I Units and Series R Units, which are redeemable
at the unitholders’ option.

Series Launch date
Series A March 22, 1999
Series T6 April 1,2013
Series F November 3, 2008
Premium Series
Series D April 8, 2014
Series | March 5, 2008
Series R March 11, 2013

* This series is currently not offered for distribution.

Series A units are offered on a no-load basis and are
available to all investors.

Series T6 units are suitable for investors holding
these units outside of a registered plan and wishing to
receive a monthly distribution.

Series F units are available for purchase by investors
who are enrolled in dealer-sponsored wrap programs
or flat fee accounts. Instead of paying a commission on
each transaction, these investors pay an annual fee to
the Manager based on the value of their assets.

Series D units are available to investors who have an
account with a discount brokerage. A reduced trailer
commission is paid to discount brokerages in respect
to Series D units which means a lower management fee
can be charged.

Series I units are available for purchase by institutional
investors who make the required minimum
investments and have entered into an agreement

with the Manager. No management fees and fixed
administration fees are charged to the Fund in

respect of the Series I units as each investor or dealer
negotiates a separate fee with the Manager.

Series R units are only available for purchase in
nonregistered accounts. Series R units are suitable for
investors who are comfortable with their distribution
being comprised of up to 100% of return of capital.

The number of units of each series that have been
issued and are outstanding are disclosed in the table

below.
For the periods ended Mar. 31, Mar. 31,
(in thousands of units) 2015 2014
Series A
Units issued and outstanding,

beginning of period 374,575 390,196
Issued 36,571 24,701
Issued on reinvestment of distributions 21,020 8,453
Redeemed during the period (32,053) (50,589)
Units issued and outstanding,

end of period 400,113 372,761
Series T6
Units issued and outstanding,

beginning of period 4,734 3,075
Issued 1,209 1,055
Issued on reinvestment of distributions 55 20
Redeemed during the period (539) (444)
Units issued and outstanding,

end of period 5,459 3,706
Series F
Units issued and outstanding,

beginning of period 345 342
Issued 265 114
Issued on reinvestment of distributions 14 11
Redeemed during the period (20) (149)
Units issued and outstanding,

end of period 604 318
Premium Series
Units issued and outstanding,

beginning of period — —
Issued 0 —
Units issued and outstanding,

end of period 0 —
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For the periods ended Mar. 31, Mar. 31, Mar. 31, Mar. 31,
(in thousands of units) 2015 2014 2015 2014
Series D Series A Units
Units issued and outstanding, Increase in net assets attributable to
beginning of period 375 - holders of redeemable units 245,236 213,462
Issued 293 — Weighted average units outstanding
Issued on reinvestment of distributions 14 - during the period 386,478 375,479
Redeemed during the period (94) — Increase in net assets attributable to
Units issued and outstanding holders of redeemable units per unit 0.63 0.56
end of period 588 - Series T6 Units
Increase in net assets attributable to
series | holders of redeemable units 4,235 2,611
Units issued and outstanding Weighted average units outstanding
beginning of period 28,033 26,652 during the period 4,987 3,352
Issued 607 668 Increase in net assets attributable to
Issued on reinvestment of distributions 1,871 1,408 h.olders F’f redeemable units per unit 085 078
Redeemed during the period (500) (1,051) Series F Uf"ts .
Units issued and outstanding Increase in net assets attributable to
end of period ' 30011 27 677 holders of redeemable units 409 255
Weighted average units outstanding
Series R | during 'the ptenodt — 444 304
Units issued and outstanding, nCTease In net assets atlfibutable 1o
beginning of period 69,435 77,711 holders of redeemable units per unit 0.92 0.84
Issued 60 3042 Premium Series Units
Issued on reinvestment of distributions 31 10 Increase in net assets attrlbgtable to
) ) holders of redeemable units 0 -
Redeemed during the period (5,064) (7,178) . ) i
— - Weighted average units outstanding
Units issued and outstanding, during the period 0 _
end of period 64,462 73,585 - -
Increase in net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable units per unit 0.06 —
Series name change ' Series D Units
As gt the close of business on March 28, 201‘3, the Increase in net assets attributable to
series name was ghanged frqm BMO Guardian Monthly holders of redeemable units 421 _
Income Fund Series F to Series F. . . .
Weighted average units outstanding
(b) Reconciliation of NAV to net assets during the period 475 -
As at March 31, 2015, September 30, 2014 and October Increase in net assets attributable to
1, 2013, there were no differences between the Fund’s holders of redeemable units per unit 0.89 —
NAV per.uni.t and its net assets per unit calculated for Series | Units
each Series in accordance with IFRS. . .
Increase in net assets attributable to
(c) Increase (decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units 25,279 20,885
holders of redeemable units per unit Weighted average units outstanding
The increase (decrease) in net assets attributable during the period 29,069 27,296
to hplders of redeemable units per unit for the ‘ Increase in net assets attributable to
periods ended March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014 is holders of redeemable units per unit 0.87 0.77

calculated as follows:




BMO Monthly Income Fund

(unaudited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
(All amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per unit data)
March 31, 2015

Mar. 31, Mar.31,  Brokerage commissions and soft dollars
2015 2014  Brokerage commissions paid on securities transactions
Series R Units and amounts paid to related parties of the Manager for
| : . brokerage services provided to the Fund for the periods
ncrease in net assets attributable to )
holders of redeemable units 38,101 40,789 are as follows:
Weighted average units outstanding Mar. 31, 2015 Mar. 31, 2014
during the period 66,461 74,916 (%) (%)
Increase in net assets attributable to Total brokerage amounts paid 603 591
holders of redeemable units per unit 0.57 0.54  Total brokerage amounts paid
to related parties 31 37

(d) Income taxes

The Fund did not have any available capital and non-
capital losses carried forward for income tax purposes
as of the tax year-ended December 2014.

(e) Related party transactions

Management fees

The Manager is entitled to receive the following fees
payable monthly, calculated at the following maximum
annual rates:

Fixed
Management  Administration

Fees Fees

Series (%) (%)

Series A 1.300 0.120

Series T6 1.300 0.120

Series F 0.550 0.120

Premium Series - 0.120

Series D 0.800 0.120
Series | * *

Series R 1.300 0.120

“ Negotiated and paid by each Series I investor directly to the Manager.

The outstanding accrued management fees due to

the Manager are included in “Accrued expenses” in
the Statement of Financial Position and for the period
ended March 31,2015 amounted to $4,409 (September
30, 2014 - $3,916; October 1, 2013 - $3,860).

Expenses
The Manager pays the administration and operating
expenses of the Series I Units.

There were no ascertainable soft dollars or brokerage
commissions paid or payable to dealers by the Fund
during the periods.

Units held by the Manager and key officers of the Manager
The Manager held the following units of the Fund:

Mar. 31, 2015
Value of
Number of Units
Series Units ($)
Premium Series 100 1
Sep. 30, 2014
Value of
Number of Units
Series Units )
Series D 101 1
Oct. 1, 2013
Value of
Number of Units
Series Units (%)
Series T6 1,031 10
Series R 1,379 9

(f) Financial instrument risk

The Fund’s objective is to provide a fixed monthly
distribution while preserving the value of investments.
The Fund invested primarily in Canadian fixed income
securities with higher-than-average yields, issued

by the federal government, provincial governments,
government agencies and corporations as well as
preferred and common shares, real estate investment
trusts, royalty trusts and other high-yielding
investments.
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No changes affecting the overall level of risk of
investing in the Fund were made during the period.

Currency risk

The tables below summarize the Fund’s exposure

to currency risk. Amounts shown are based on the
carrying value of monetary and non-monetary assets
(including derivatives and the underlying principle
(notional) amount of forward currency contracts, if

any).
As at Mar. 31, 2015

Cashand  Invest-

other ments
current  (monetary & Forward Net Asa%
receivables  non- currency currency of Net

& payables monetary) contracts exposure Assets

(8) (8) (8) () (%)

Australian

Dollar 86 12,226 (3,182) 9,130 0.2
Danish

Krone 67 1,849 - 1,916 0.1
Euro 52 26,869 - 26921 0.7
Hong Kong

Dollar 11 5,158 - 5,169 0.1
Israeli

Shekel 1 3,990 - 3,991 0.1
Japanese

Yen 164 22,093 - 22,257 0.6
New Zealand

Dollar 33 1,068 - 1,101 0.0
Norwegian

Krone - 4,554 - 4,554 0.1
Pound

Sterling 25 12,869 - 12,894 0.3
Singapore

Dollar - 5,465 - 5,465 0.1
Swedish

Krona 142 5,361 - 5,503 0.2
Swiss Franc — 658 - 658 0.0
U.S. Dollar 945 632,539 - 633,484 16.3
Total 1,526 734,699 (3,182) 733,043 18.8

All amounts in Canadian dollars

As at Sep. 30, 2014

Cashand  Invest-
other ments
current  (monetary & Forward Net Asa%
receivables  non- currency currency of Net
& payables monetary) contracts exposure Assets
% ) (% $) (%)
Australian
Dollar (415) 6,855 (1372) 5068 0.1
Danish
Krone — 1,772 - 1,772 0.0
Euro (291) 11,659 2,122 13,490 0.4
Hong Kong
Dollar 1,163 2,024 - 3,187 0.1
Israeli
Shekel 49 2,230 - 2,279 0.1
Japanese
Yen 457 16,457 - 16,914 0.5
New Zealand
Dollar 29 950 - 979 0.0
Norwegian
Krone (562) 3,864 - 3,302 0.1
Pound
Sterling 58 6,874 3,632 10,564 0.3
Singapore
Dollar — 2,874 - 2,874 0.1
Swedish
Krona — 7,516 - 7516 0.2
Swiss Franc — 625 - 625 0.0
U.S. Dollar 292 449,140 - 449,432 12.3
Total 780 512,840 4,382 518,002 14.2
All amounts in Canadian dollars
As at Oct. 1, 2013
Cashand  Invest-
other ments
current  (monetary & Forward  Net Asa%
receivables  non- currency  currency of Net
& payables monetary) contracts exposure Assets
) )] ) ¢ (%)
U.S. Dollar 1,207 254,916 - 256,123 7.2

All amounts in Canadian dollars
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As at March 31, 2015, September 30, 2014 and October
1, 2013, if the Canadian dollar had strengthened or
weakened by 5% in relation to all foreign currencies,
with all factors remaining constant, Net Assets could
possibly have increased or decreased, respectively, by
approximately $36,652 (September 30, 2014 — $25,900;
October 1, 2013 — $12,806). In practice, actual results
may differ from this sensitivity analysis and the
difference could be material.

Interest rate risk
The following table summarizes the Fund’s exposure
to interest rate risk by remaining term to maturity:

Interest Rate Exposure as at

Mar. 31, Sep. 30, Oct. 1,
Number of years 2015 2014 2013
Less than one year 51,569 5,093 31,346
One to three years 349,951 325,445 374,783
Three to five years 286,669 347,469 327,315
Five to ten years 505,093 428,164 595,324
Greater than ten years 427,612 326,191 95,263
Total 1,620,894 1,432,362 1,424,031

All amounts in Canadian dollars

As at March 31, 2015, September 30, 2014 and October
1, 2013, if the prevailing interest rates had been raised
or lowered by 1%, assuming a parallel shift in the yield
curve, with all other factors remaining constant, Net
Assets could possibly have decreased or increased,
respectively, by approximately $120,838 (September
30,2014 — $103,048; October 1, 2013 — $59,402). The
Fund’s interest rate sensitivity was determined based
on portfolio weighted duration. In practice, actual
results may differ from this sensitivity analysis and the
difference could be material.

Other market risk

The Fund has a significant exposure to other market
risk arising from its investment in equity securities.
Using historical correlation between the Fund's return
and the return of its benchmark, if the benchmark,
composed of 50% S&P/TSX Composite Total Return
Index and 50% FTSE TMX Canada Universe Bond
Index, had increased or decreased by 10%, with all
other variables held constant, the net assets of the Fund
would have increased or decreased, respectively, by
$129,194 (September 30, 2014 - $130,786; October 1,
2013 - $143,354). Historical correlation may not be
representative of future correlation, and accordingly,
actual results may differ and the difference could be
material.

Credit risk
The Fund’s credit risk exposure grouped by credit
ratings is listed in the following table:

As a % of Net Assets as at

Mar. 31, Sep. 30, Oct. 1,
Credit Rating 2015 2014 2013
R-1 High 0.2 0.1 0.2
R-1 Mid 0.8 - 0.2
R-1 Low 0.2 - -
AAA 13.6 12.2 14.0
AA 9.3 9.6 8.0
A 11.4 12.5 12.8
BBB 6.1 4.9 4.9
Total 41.6 39.3 40.1

Securities lending

The Fund had assets involved in securities lending
transactions outstanding as at March 31, 2015,
September 30, 2014 and October 1, 2013 as follows:

Aggregate value of

Aggregate value of  collateral received for

securities on loan the loan

(8) ($)
Mar. 31, 2015 752,602 795,827
Sep. 30, 2014 598,768 630,668
Oct. 1, 2013 681,144 719,227
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Concentration risk

The following is a summary of the Fund's
concentration risk:

Mar. 31, Sep. 30, Oct. 1,
2015 2014 2013
Money Market Investments
Federal......coooovvvees ceeeeiinnnn, 0.2%.......un..... .o 0.2%
Provincial........ccooees veveenennnnn. 1.0%......co..... 0.1%............. 0.2%
Canadian Bonds & Debentures
Federal Bonds ......... ........... 10.9%............. 9.4%........... 10.9%
Provincial Bonds....... ........... 11.5%........... 12.8%............. 9.4%
Municipal Bonds....... ............. 0.1%............. 0.1%............. 0.3%
Corporate Bonds &
Debentures.......... ........... 16.0%........... 15.9%........... 18.0%
Asset-Backed
SECUMtIeS .uvvvniines e, 0.1%.....ccun..... .. 0.1%
Mortgage-Backed
SeCUnities ....ovevvens veneineennen, 0.1%............. 0.1%............. 0.2%
Foreign Bonds & Debentures
GermMany....cccovvveeins veveeeennn. 0.3%.............. | IO —Y%
JapaNn ... e, 0.1%.............. L FOPURORRRN —%
United Kingdom ....... c..co....... 0.6%............. 0.6%............. 0.4%
United States .......... cooeevennnnn. 0.7%............. 0.2%............. 0.4%
Canadian Equities
Consumer
Discretionary........ c...cceeun... 3.4%............. 44%............. 4.8%
Consumer Staples..... ............. 1.7%.ccuunn...... 2.4%............. 5.0%
Energy .....ocoooiiin i, 6.5%............. 7.0%............. 8.2%
FinancialS.........coceee ceeeennnnn. 12.0%........... 12.9%........... 14.8%
Industrials .........cooee ceveerennnns. 0.6%............. 1.1%..... 1.2%
Information
Technology.......... ceeeeennnnn. 0.2%....cc....... Yoo —Y
Materials .....coeeveees ceeieeenn, 1.4%............. 0.6%............. 1.3%
Telecommunication
SeIVICES . evniiniiines e, 1.6%............. 1.7%...ccunenn... 3.1%
Utilities ..oooveveieeein e, 5.3%............. 58%...cc........ 5.0%
Foreign Equities
Australia......ccoeeeiinn e, 0.3%............. 0.2%.....ccun..... —0p
AUSETIa e 0.0%.............. e [T —Y%
Belgium......ovvvein e, 0.2%............. 0.0%.............. —0
Bermuda.........oovvees ceeeeiinnn, 0.8%............. 0.5%......cun..... —0p
ChiNd.eeeieeeieeiees e, 0.0%.............. e THVTT —Y%
Colombia ....ovvvviiies e e TR e TP 0.2%
Denmark........coovvees veveeeennnn. 0.1%.....cco..... 0.1%.....conn..... —0
Finland.......ooveeneein e, (| TR 0.0%.............. —0b
France........coovieiies vieiinnne. 0.2%............. 0.1%.............. —0b

Mar. 31, Sep. 30, Oct. 1,
2015 2014 2013
Hong Kong .......c..cc. eeeniennnene 0.1%............. 0.0%.....ccnneenee —%
ISrael ..ot e, 0.1%....ccc...... 0.1%...evveeeeeee. —%
I3V et eeeeeeeeeae, 0.1%............. 0.0%.............. —Y
Japan....ooiiii e 0.6%............. 0.5%....ccunee..n. —
Luxembourg.......cccuv vevvveeennnns 0.0%.....cc...... 0.0%.....evveeeee. —%
Macau.....c.oeeniiiis e, 0.0%............. 0.0%....cccnnennee —%
Netherlands............ cocceeeeeenn. 0.0%............. 0.0%............. 0.1%
New Zealand........... coccoeeee... 0.0%............. 0.0%.....evveeee. —%
NOTWAY «.eeevneiniiiieen e 0.1%............. 0.1%....ccuneennee —%
SINQAPOTe....eeeviiees v 0.1%...ccuunnene. 0.1%...ccunneeennn —
SPAIN .. e 0.1%...ccuunneee. 0.0%.............. —%
Sweden....cooeeeeeeiiis ceeeiiiiin, 0.1%............. 0.2%...ccccee.. —U
Switzerland............. ...l 0.0%............. 0.0%....cccnneenn. —%
L 11 | 0.1%............. 0.1%...ceennennes —%
United Kingdom ....... ............. 0.5%............. 0.4%.............. —Y%
United States .......... ........... 15.2%........... 11.6%............. 7.1%
Exchange Traded
FUNdS....oeveeeneeies e, 6.0%............. 9.5%.0uuennn... 7.8%
Other Assets Less
Liabilities ............... oo, 0.8%............. 1.3%............. 1.3%
................................ 100.0%......... 100.0%......... 100.0%
(g) Financial assets and financial liabilities
Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities
The table below shows the categories of financial
assets and financial liabilities:
Mar.31,  Sep. 30, Oct. 1,
2015 2014 2013
Financial assets designated
as FVTPL 3,864,584 3,603,780 3,505,395
Financial assets held for
trading 30 126 —
Loans and receivables 95,535 35,468 42,915

Financial liabilities held for
trading - 23 -
Financial liabilities measured
at amortized cost 86,256

16,206 23,457
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Net gains and losses on financial assets and financial
liabilities

As at Mar. 31, 2015

Financial assets level1  level2 Level3 Total
Mar. 31, Mar. 31, Equity Securities 1,901,422 107,048 265 2,008,735
2015 2014 pebt Securities 7,516 1,613,378 — 1,620,894
Net realized gains (losses) on financial assets Derivatives — 30 — 30
Held for trading 64 63 Investment Funds 234,955 — — 234,955
Designated at FVTPL 228,258 120,661 Total 2,143,893 1,720,456 265 3,864,614
228,322 120,724
As at Sep. 30, 2014
Net realized gains (losses) on financial liabilities Flna.mclal as.sgts level 1 level2 level3 Total
Held for trading - - Equity Securities 1,750,358 74,770 — 1,825,128
- - Debt Securities 4,613 1,427,749 — 1,432,362
Tptal net realized gains ﬂqsses) on Derivatives _ 126 _ 126
financial assets and liabilities 228,322 120,724 | vestment Funds 346,290 _ _ 346,290
Total 2,101,261 1,502,645 — 3,603,906
Change in unrgallzed gains (losses) on financial assets Financial liabilities
Held for trading - ~  Derivatives 5 — 23)
Designated at FVTPL 114,622 183,528
114,622 183,528 As at Oct. 1, 2013
Financial assets level1 level2 Level3 Total
Change in unrealized gains (losses) on financial liabilities Equity Securities 1,800,874 4,010 — 1,804,834
Held for trading (73) (108) Debt Securities — 1,424,031 — 1,424,031
- - - Investment Funds 276,480 — — 276,480
Total change in unrealized gains Total 2,077,354 1,428,041 3,505,395
(losses) on financial assets and
liabilities 114,549 183,420  Transfers between levels

(h) Fair value hierarchy

The Fund classifies its financial instruments into three
levels based on the inputs used to value the financial
instruments. Level 1 securities are valued based on
quoted prices in active markets for identical securities.
Level 2 securities are valued based on significant
observable market inputs, such as quoted prices from
similar securities and quoted prices in inactive markets
or based on observable inputs to models. Level 3
securities are valued based on significant unobservable
inputs that reflect the Manager's determination of
assumptions that market participants might reasonably
use in valuing the securities. The tables below show
the relevant disclosure.

There were no transfers between the levels during the
periods.

Changes in Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

The following table presents a reconciliation of all
Level 3 financial instruments during the periods ended
March 31, 2015, September 30, 2014 and October 1,
2013, including realized and unrealized gains (losses)
included in earnings.
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Mar. 31, Sep. 30, Oct. 1,
2015 2014 2013

Financial Assets

Equity Securities
Opening Balance — — —
Purchase issuance 265 — —
Sales/settlements — — —
Realized and unrealized

gains/(losses) included

in earnings - - -
Transfers in — — —
Transfers out — — —
Closing Balance 265 — —

The Manager has assessed the effect of changing the
inputs to possible alternatives and determined that
they would not have a significant impact on net assets
of the Fund.

Transfers are made between the various fair value
hierarchy levels due to changes in the availability
of quoted market prices or observable inputs due to
changing market conditions.

During the period, $10 million of debt securities were
transferred from Level 2 to Level 1 due to increased
availability of quoted prices in the active markets.

Level 3 additional disclosures:
The level 3 positions held in the Fund were not
considered significant.

(i) Unconsolidated structured entities

Information on the carrying amount and the size of the
investments in structured entities is shown in the table
below.

Mar. 31, Sep. 30, Oct. 1,
2015 2014 2013
Carrying amount

BMO High Yield U.S.
Corporate Bond
Hedged to CAD
INdeX ETF ..oveeeiies e e 65,497......... 109,130

BMO MSCI EAFE
Hedged to CAD
INdeX ETF ..vvvvnnnnns e, 162,7817......... 171340 e, -

BMO S&P 500
Index ETF ..evvvves e, 72,168......... 109,659......... 167,350

Mar. 31, Sep. 30, Oct. 1,
2015 2014 2013

Ford Auto
Securitization Trust,
Series 2013-R1,
Class A1, Asset-
Backed Notes,
Floating Rate, Dec
15,2014 e e s e 3,729

Hollis Receivable
Term Trust I, Series
2015-1, Class A,
Receivables-Backed,
1.788% Feb 26,

Real Estate Asset
Liquidity Trust,
Series 2007-2, Class
A1, 5.195% Mar 12,

Total 242,471 350,903 286,687

Carrying amount as a percentage of the underlying fund's net assets

BMO High Yield U.S.
Corporate Bond
Hedged to CAD
Index ETF ..ovvveeeiee v, Woueeeaannn 6.2%........... 17.9%

BMO MSCI EAFE
Hedged to CAD

Index ETF .....evveiie e 20.0%........... 24.2%............... )
BMO S&P 500
Index ETF ...ccccvvvr v 2.9%............. 6.8%........... 24.0%

The carrying value of mortgage related and other
asset-backed securities are included in "Investments
- Non derivative financial assets" in the Statement of
Financial Position. This amount also represents the
maximum exposure to losses at that date.

The change in fair value of mortgage related and other
asset-backed securities are included in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income in "Change in unrealized
appreciation (depreciation)".
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(j) Transition to IFRS

The differences between the Fund’s Canadian GAAP
accounting policies and IFRS requirements resulted
in measurement and classification differences on
transition to IFRS. The net impact of these differences
was recorded in opening Net Assets as of October 1,
2013.

The following information reflects the Fund’s
transition elections under IFRS 1, First-time Adoption
of International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS
1”), the standard for first-time adoption and the
significant accounting changes resulting from our
adoption of IFRS. The general principle under IFRS 1 is
retroactive application, such that the Fund’s Statement
of Financial Position as at October 1, 2013 was restated
as though the Fund has always applied IFRS with the
net impact shown as an adjustment to opening Net
Assets.

Transition elections

The Fund had applied the voluntary exemption upon
transition to designate financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL. All financial assets designated at
FVTPL upon transition were previously recorded at fair
value under Canadian GAAP as required by Accounting
Guideline 18, Investment Companies.

Statement of cash flows

Under Canadian GAAP, the Fund was exempt

from providing a Statement of Cash Flows. IAS 1,
Presentation of Financial Statements (“IAS 17),
requires that a Statement of Cash Flows be presented as
part of a complete set of financial statements. As such,
the Fund has presented a Statement of Cash Flows in
the semi-annual financial statements for the periods
ended March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014.

Classification of redeemable units issued by the Fund
Under Canadian GAAP, redeemable units of the

Fund were presented as Net Assets. IAS 32, Financial
Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation (“IAS 32”),
however, requires an assessment to determine whether
the units issued to unitholders are puttable instruments
that qualify for equity treatment. The Fund’s units do
not meet the criteria in IAS 32 for equity classification
and therefore, have been reclassified as financial
liabilities on transition to IFRS and presented on the
Statement of Financial Position as Net Assets.

Reclassification adjustments

In addition to the measurement adjustments noted
above, the Fund reclassified certain amounts upon
transition in order to conform its financial statement
presentation under IFRS. Under Canadian GAAP, the
Fund presented withholding taxes by netting them
against investment income, whereas they have been
reclassified and presented separately as an expense
under IFRS.

Revaluation of investments at FVTPL

Canadian GAAP required the use of bid prices for long
positions and ask prices for short positions in the fair
valuation of investments traded in an active market,
rather than the use of close prices used for the purpose
of determining NAV. IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement
(“IFRS 13”), requires that if an asset or a liability has

a bid price and an ask price, then its fair value is to

be based on a price within the bid-ask spread that is
most representative of fair value. The standard also
allows the use of mid-market pricing or other pricing
conventions that are used by market participants as a
practical expedient for fair value measurements within
a bid-ask spread. Upon adoption of IFRS, the Fund

has determined that for traded securities, close prices
are considered to be fair value, if they fall within the
bid-ask spread. See Note 3 for the Fund’s fair value
measurement policy.

Reconciliation of Net Assets as reported under
Canadian GAAP to IFRS

Sep.30,  Mar.31, Oct. 1,
2014 2014 2013
Net assets representing
unitholders' equity
under Canadian GAAP 3,646,417 3,573,555 3,548,833
Revaluation of
investments at FVTPL 3,148 1,752 2,130
Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units 3,649,565 3,575,307 3,550,963
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Reconciliation of increase (decrease) in net assets reported
under Canadian GAAP to IFRS
Sep. 30, Mar. 31,

2014 2014
Increase in net assets from operations
under Canadian GAAP 434,105 278,380
Revaluation of investments at FVTPL 1,017 (378)
Increase in net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable units 435,122 278,002

Presentation of interest income

Under Canadian GAAP, the Fund presented interest
income on debt instruments in the Statement of
Operations calculated using the stated rate without
amortization of discounts, premiums or transaction
costs. IFRS requires interest income to be calculated
using the effective interest method. As a result,
$29,875 was reclassified from “Change in unrealized
appreciation (depreciation)” to “Interest income”

in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the
period ended March 31, 2014 to conform to the IFRS
presentation.
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